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Introduction

“Imagination is the leading
provider of application-
specific IP... enabling
next-generation
consumer products like
mobile TV or mobile
multimedia”

Imagination Technologies is proud to be amongst the top
players in the fast moving semiconductor intellectual
property (IP) industry. These days, the industry covers an
incredibly rich and diverse range of technologies, including
general purpose cores such as embedded CPUs and
memories, and application-specific dedicated high
performance accelerators for graphics, communications 
and other key functions. 

Imagination is the leading provider of application-specific IP.
It’s these technologies that are enabling next-generation
consumer products such as mobile TVs and multimedia
phones, as well as delivering new levels of user friendliness
to the complex, multi-function devices now appearing. 

The semiconductor IP industry is experiencing something 
of a renaissance: the increasing convergence in products 
and integration of functions in silicon is leading traditional
semiconductor companies to buy-in best-of-breed technologies
to complete their system-on-chip (SoC) solutions. 

These technologies are created by groups of dedicated
engineers who live and breathe a specialised area of
expertise. Backed up with the resources required, these
engineers convert their expertise into class-leading technology
with fundamental benefits, which will allow Imagination
to lead in its market segment for many years to come.

The end result is an ever increasing range of consumer
electronic products, from the world’s leading brands, with
Imagination inside.
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Dear Shareholder,

During the last year ended March 31st 2007 we have maintained the momentum
that has been building for some time in all aspects of our business. Group revenues
increased by 36% to over £48 million.

In our technology licensing business we secured over 10 new licensing deals, saw a
continued rise in our customer’s SoC design wins and maintained momentum in
chip volume, which more than doubled to almost 26 million. Thus the expected
“take-off” has begun.

We regarded the extension of our important partnership with TI for OMAP3 and
the growing cooperation with Intel in mobile computing/UMPC as particularly
positive indicators of our progress. The associated investment by Intel during the
year, coupled with growing business with other key current and major new
partners testifies to the value that these companies see in our offerings and in their
relationship with Imagination Technologies.

At the same time PURE Digital has had another strong year and is now the UK’s
number one overall radio supplier, including analogue radios. It has done this while
maintaining its margins.

The group was close to profitability in the second half of the year. Cash resources
stand 50% above last year and are at an appropriate level for our plans. We start
this financial year with a significant order book and an active pipeline of licensing
opportunities. Our steady investment in research and development is beginning to
show a good return. We continually seek efficiencies in this significant area of
operating expense and have recently opened our first design centre in Pune, India,
to access the local talent and participate better in this emerging region. 

The ramp-up of partner chip shipments, the high level of interest in our IP cores
and the strong position of PURE Digital give us confidence that we will maintain
our momentum and see further real progress this year.

I would like to take this opportunity to thank all our employees who have worked
so hard to ensure the company’s progress and our thanks are also due to our
advisors and especially to you, our shareholders, for your continued support and
the keen interest you show in the company.

Geoff Shingles
Chairman

“The expected ‘take-off’
has begun”
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This year has seen a significant increase in Group revenues driven by strong growth
in both our technology licensing and PURE Digital businesses. The healthy progress
in the licensing business was achieved despite tighter conditions in the
semiconductor market during the last quarter of the financial year. 

Financial Review
Group revenues for the year ended 31 March 2007 were £48.1m, a 36% increase
on last year (2006: £35.3m). Technology revenues, comprising royalties and
licensing, were up 49% on last year at £21.8m (2006: £14.6m) and PURE Digital
revenues were up 27% at £26.3m (2006: £20.7m). 

Technology business revenues are predominantly US dollar based and whilst the
sterling revenue growth reported above was 49%, the underlying growth in US
dollars was 57%. Within the technology business revenues, there was strong
growth in both licensing and royalty revenues. 

Licensing revenue increased by 44% (51% on a US dollar basis) to £13.0m (2006:
£9.0m) with a significant proportion of this being repeat business as existing
partners broaden their use of Imagination’s IP. In addition to the increased
licensing revenue achieved during the year, an improved order book of £7.4m
(2006: £6.0m) of licensing and support revenue has been carried forward at the
end of the year, the majority of which is expected to be recognised in the current
financial year. 

Royalty revenue increased 57% (67% on a US dollar basis) to £8.8m (2006:
£5.6m), based on the shipment of 25.7m chips (2006: 11.9m) incorporating our
technology. After adjusting the first half royalty shipment volume to take into
account corrected royalty reports, chip volume has been approximately equal in the
first and second half of this financial year due to the timing of partner chip volume
ramp-up and OEM product launches. 

Through its broadening product range, PURE Digital has again had a strong year.
The Christmas period is important for this business and as expected second half
revenues were 48% ahead of the first half. 

Gross profit for the year was £27.1m, a 43% increase on last year (2006: £19.0m).
The gross margin has improved to 56% (2006: 54%) mainly due to a change in the
revenue mix in favour of the higher margin technology business. Despite strong
growth in the PURE Digital business, gross margins have been maintained. 

Research and development expenses increased by 13% to £23.4m (2006: £20.7m).
The focus of this spend during the year has centred on the development of our
core IP as well as ensuring effective technical support for our growing partner base.
The R&D activities have included development of a wider range of cores based on
our PowerVR graphics technology to address a broader range of market
opportunities, development of our multi-standard video cores, TV technologies and
platforms for mobile TV and radio/audio, and development of funded SoCs for our
partners. Additionally, it is critical that our engineering resources are able to fully
support our partners in deploying the technologies licensed into their growing list
of internal SoCs developments, as well as in adopting additional technologies from
Imagination. As we reported previously, in January we also opened a new design
centre in India to both tap into the global talent pool and also benefit from its
lower cost base. Sales and administrative costs were £6.2m (2006: £5.5m).

The loss before tax for the year of £2.3m shows a 66% reduction on last year
(2006: loss £6.9m) as the margin from the revenue growth has filtered through to
the bottom line. In the second half the business was close to break-even.

The tax charge in the year of £0.2m (2006: £0.5m) represents tax deducted at
source on overseas earnings. This has reduced following a recent beneficial change
in the tax treaty between the UK and Japan. The Group reported a loss per share of
1.2p, down sharply from a loss of 3.7p

“This year has seen a
significant increase in
Group revenues driven
by strong growth in both
our technology licensing
and PURE Digital
businesses”

Imagination Technologies Group plc
Annual Report 2007

Chief EExecutive’s
Review
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The Group has significantly reduced the operating cash outflow to £2.0m, which
compares to £10.1m for 2005/06. This is after allowing for an increase of £1.6m in
working capital, which resulted mainly from the increased debtors associated with
the 36% revenue growth.

Capital spend in the year was £1.9m (2006: £1.5m). With the inclusion of the
£5.3m proceeds from the share placement to Intel in October, net cash resources
increased to £9.6m at March 2007 compared to £6.4m at March 2006. 

As previously stated, the Group has moved the end of the financial year to 30
April. Royalties are becoming an increasingly important revenue stream for the
business and, taking into account the timing of royalty reporting by our partners,
this will enable the business to provide a more accurate assessment of its royalty
revenues at the close of financial periods. The current financial year will be extended
to 13 months; running from 1 April 2007 to 30 April 2008. Interim results will be
announced for the 6 months to 30 September 2007 and full year results for the 13
months to 30 April 2008. Thereafter financial years will run from 1 May to 30 April.

Business Review

Technology Business Update
During the year, the active pipeline of opportunities has led to the closure of both
strategically important and financially significant licensing agreements. We concluded
over ten new licensing agreements compared to nine last year. In addition to
broadening our partner base and the range of markets that our IP is now addressing,
our licensing activities are continuing to broaden across our range of technologies
with the proportion of business from our META and ENSIGMA technologies
continuing to grow. The agreements concluded this year were across graphics,
video, mobile TV and audio technologies. This demonstrates both the competitive
advantages of our technologies and their relevance for market opportunities. 

Our new licensing agreement with Texas Instruments (TI), the industry leader in
wireless semiconductor devices, for the deployment of our next generation
PowerVR SGX graphics in TI’s OMAP3 family of products was a significant
milestone. Similarly the extended partnership with Intel, which involved additional
licensing of PowerVR SGX as well as video and display technologies for mobile
computing/UMPC markets, combined with its investment in Imagination during the
year, is another clear example of the strength and value that our partners see in
both our product offerings and the relationship with Imagination. Other important
agreements during the year included those with Renesas, Sharp, Freescale,
Centrality, Frontier Silicon, Mavrix and Future Waves.

Partner chip unit shipments more than doubled to 25.7m units (2006: 11.9m). The
volume growth has been primarily driven by the production ramp-up across the
mobile segment, the DAB market and 3D-based car navigation systems with some
early contributions from the mobile TV and TV segments. Whilst this growth was
significant, and we saw good growth in the Japanese market, it was lower than we
had anticipated due to some delays in the introduction of a number of higher end
handsets into western markets. However, this is seen as a short-term factor given
the increasing number of end-user products incorporating our technology,
including a number of high profile handsets that are now coming to market or are
in the pipeline. This progress will, in due course, be supplemented by the expected
deployment of our technology and volume growth in the other emerging markets
such as mobile TV, Internet Protocol Television (IPTV) and personal navigation
systems which our technologies are successfully targeting. 

“During the year, the
active pipeline of
opportunities has led to
the closure of both
strategically important
and financially significant
licensing agreements”

Chief EExecutive’s
Review ccontinued
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The momentum behind new partner SoC design wins has continued with the
cumulative number of committed partner SoCs increasing to 50 at March 2007,
compared with 40 a year ago, with 18 now in production (2006: 14). These design
wins are the drivers for future partner SoC shipments and therefore further royalty
growth. These committed devices are spread both across our partners and our key
market segments: 21 for mobile phone; three in digital radio/audio; eight for car
and personal navigation; seven in mobile TV; five for digital TV; three in mobile
computing/UMPC; and three in amusement.

Market Segment Progress
In the mobile phone market segment there are over 45 handsets that are based
on our technologies. These include handsets from Nokia, Sony Ericsson, Motorola,
NEC, Fujitsu, Mitsubishi, Panasonic and Sharp. We continue to have a growing
position in the Japanese mobile phone market through our very strong ranging
across the latest DoCoMo phones. In addition to Sony Ericsson’s W850i, M600i,
and P990i models and Nokia’s N93 and N93i models which are already shipping,
we are now seeing, albeit a little later than forecast, a growing number of other
high profile phones which are now shipping, or about to ship, in western markets.
Amongst these are the acclaimed Nokia N95, Nokia E90, the Motorola MotoRIZR
Z8 and MotoQ q9 and Sony Ericsson P1i. We also expect other high profile
handsets to begin shipment starting from the second quarter of the current
financial year. These new phones, targeted at western as well as global markets
should significantly accelerate the volume ramp up for FY 07/08 whilst also
demonstrating the real benefit of graphics for both the user interface and
application content. 

We have also seen continued progress in our other established markets such as
digital radio/audio and automotive, where we have market-leading positions and a
growing number of design wins. In the DAB digital radio market our digital
radio/audio IP platform technology has maintained its position of around 70%
market share and has been deployed in over 150 end-user products. This market
has so far been mostly UK centric but is now expected to make faster progress
elsewhere particularly with the advent of an enhanced DAB standard, known as
DAB+, that is beginning to be adopted in other regions. 

In the car navigation market the vast majority of the new 3D-based navigation
systems in Japan continue to use partner chips which deploy our PowerVR
technology. This year we have secured new semiconductor partners in this segment
which are developing products for both traditional in-car navigation systems as
well as the next generation of Personal Navigation Devices (PNDs) which have
become very popular in recent years and can now benefit from advanced graphics
and video technology as well as mobile TV. Our partners in this segment now
include Renesas, NEC, Freescale and Centrality. 

With our technology already shipping in Far Eastern markets which have adopted
the T-DMB standard, the shipment of devices featuring our new multi-standard
mobile TV technology in the near future should see our technology deployed in a
widening range of geographic markets. The progress of the mobile TV market and
our continued commitment to the TV segment should begin to bear fruit and make
a growing contribution to our overall volume and royalty ramp-up during FY 07/08.
With respect to the TV segment we expect IPTV products that deploy our
technology to begin shipment in the near future. 

Our partnership with Intel in the personal computing/UMPC segment is progressing
well, with significant additional projects committed during the year. We expect this
to lead to product shipments towards the latter part of our 07/08 financial year. 

Imagination Technologies Group plc
Annual Report 2007
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Pure Digital Update
PURE Digital had a very strong Christmas period and has extended its leadership in
the DAB market. It has continued to bring to market technically advanced, high
quality products across a broadening range of key market segments including
lower-cost quality portable radios, clock radios, personal radios, micros and lifestyle
products. In many key radio categories, PURE Digital has now achieved a market
share in the range of 20-35%. Importantly it has also become the UK’s number one
overall radio supplier (including analogue radios). This has been achieved through
wide product ranging by all the key retailers, who acknowledge and value PURE’s
quality, broad product range, strong brand and position as the DAB market leader. 

PURE Digital continues to maintain its leadership of the DAB market and has grown
its market share through a multi-faceted strategy. 

It has continued to deliver products which provide advanced and novel features,
taking full advantage of the opportunities that the digital nature of DAB and the
growth of digital audio offer. As a result PURE now has a growing range of
products with advanced features such as pause/rewind/record, digital storage (SD
Card), MP3 integration, USB upgradeability, EPG (Electronic Programme Guide) and
teletext-style capabilities (Intellitext®). This technology drive has won PURE Digital
many awards including those for its leading-edge product EVOKE-3 which included
What Hi-Fi? Sound & Vision Radio Product of the Year, the CNET Awards’ Best
Digital Radio, and Boys Toys’ DAB Radio of 2006.

PURE has diversified its product range beyond portable/kitchen radios targeting
other traditional consumer audio segments with DAB by increasing usability and
adding advanced features. For example, PURE’s new Move radio brings portability
to a new level in a stylish and practical design, and the DMX and Legato micro
system range integrate many advanced features in addition to CD, MP3 and digital
storage making them industry-leading products in this segment. Another segment
in which PURE secured the top position during the year has been the clock/radio
segment where PURE’s Chronos and Chronos CD have achieved market leading
positions.

Additionally PURE has continued to deliver quality low-cost products for
mainstream markets in order to secure maximum shelf space for the PURE brand,
reach the majority of consumers and drive the DAB market forward. Two examples
of this drive are the PURE ONE, at £49, an outstanding success attracting very
strong demand, and the newly launched DMX-25 micro.

The above approaches combined with leading-edge product innovation, designed
to drive and enable new markets, will continue to be the fundamental elements in
PURE Digital’s continued progress.

6
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Outlook and the Future
We have now seen licensing revenue growth over the last three consecutive half
years, which is a clear sign of our technology’s market relevance and competitive
advantage. The ongoing requirements of our existing partners, combined with the
growing interest from new customers, give us confidence that our technologies will
continue to be adopted in the future. The healthy order backlog carried forward to
the current financial year is also providing us with a good starting base for the
year. Whilst the timing and level of revenues may be difficult to forecast accurately,
we expect to see another active year for licensing opportunities and further
progress. 

We expect strong volume growth for the next few years as our technology
deployment continues across our key market segments, given the increasing
number of end-user products, especially high profile handsets that are coming to
market incorporating our technology and the expected rapid growth in the
emerging markets which our technologies are targeting.

With digital radio technology becoming a ubiquitous feature in most home audio
and music systems in the UK, and in due course in other geographic markets, we
are confident that PURE Digital will be able to maintain its strong progress through
innovative and leading products. For the current financial year, the product and
retailer ranging plans are firmly in place for another strong year from PURE Digital.
We also expect PURE to launch new innovative and market-changing products
during this year which will further drive its growth plans as well as deployment of
our key technologies.

Last year saw strong growth in both our Technology and PURE Digital businesses
with the second half performance getting close to break-even. Overall we are
confident that these trends will continue and that we will see further progress in
the current financial year.

Hossein Yassaie
Chief Executive

“We expect strong
volume growth for the
next few years as our
technology deployment
continues across our key
market segments”

Imagination Technologies Group plc
Annual Report 2007



Business 
Overview

Our World
Look around you: technology is everywhere. It surrounds us in our offices, homes
and cars; we carry it with us in the form of our phones, laptops and personal
media players.

For over a decade Imagination Technologies has been creating unique, patented
intellectual property (IP) cores to enable multimedia, communications and
broadcast devices. 

Put simply: we develop the ideas and technologies which enable the latest chips
and gadgets. These include pocket technologies like graphics for gaming or UI,
mobile TV and digital audio; technologies for fun at home including audio systems,
HD video and TV; and the navigation and entertainment systems in your car.

We create a design and provide this to our customers in the form of a
customizable circuit design, plus the software to control it. Our customers then
combine our design with their own to create a complete chip solution – often
referred to as a system-on-chip (SoC) – which is capable of all the amazing things
we’ve come to expect from consumer electronics. 

When our customers create the physical masks used to build the chip, these masks
look a little like a map of a city seen from high above. Indeed, some of the SoCs
we are involved in are so complex that they resemble a street map of all of Europe.

Today’s IP industry covers an incredibly rich and diverse range of applications. We
specialise in the areas that entertain people, help them communicate and help
them enjoy the information-rich world around them.

However, although we create the technology which lies at the heart of new
consumer products, someone else needs to get that technology into people’s
hands: that’s the role of the semiconductor companies who license our
technologies from us, and in turn sell it to many of the world’s leading electronics
companies.

It’s because of class-leading, proven technologies like ours that top semiconductor
companies are coming to rely increasingly on third parties for large parts of their
SoC designs; meanwhile, they focus on their core strengths like specific in-house
technologies, integration, sales and marketing, logistics and support.

The capabilities of the latest advanced silicon manufacturing processes mean that a
wide range of functions, like processing, memory and video, can now be integrated
on a single system-on-chip. Our partners are strong in skills ranging from process
technology to the creation of systems involving in-house and bought-in
technologies, from application-level systems knowledge to supply chain
management. This means that the key benefits of their SoC products come not just
from what each block does, but the way they are put together and delivered to
customers – with full hardware, software and applications support. 

Imagination’s IP enables our partners to concentrate on the things that matter
most to them, while we develop enabling technologies across the wide range of
SoC applications.

8

Our IP is at the start, and 
heart, of consumer products.
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9

Chairman’s
Statement

We have built up a level of expertise across our core technologies that few
semiconductor companies can rival. By choosing a small number of highly-focused
market segments, Imagination has, for example, been able to produce five
generations of graphics engines, each with better performance, higher functionality
and an enviable history of success in volume production. We offer cost-effective
and low-risk solutions that help semiconductor companies bring the best possible
SoCs to market.

Once semiconductor companies have realised the value of such technology, it is
not cost-effective to create a new team to develop these themselves. Even if they
tried, the maturity of Imagination’s designs makes it almost impossible for a new
design team to match our expertise. That’s the essence of our success in the IP
industry.

The company has grown beyond its initial PowerVR family of 2D/3D graphics cores
to add video encode and decode, multi-standard receivers and multi-threaded
embedded processing to its portfolio. These technologies are the basis of many of
the electronics wonders that are making life simpler and more fun.

We choose our research areas very carefully and maintain a very high rate of
success; around 90% of our R&D results in marketable technology. We work by
identifying markets which are either emerging, or about to undergo significant
changes, and create exceptional technology to exploit those opportunities. 

Developing our initial fundamental technologies took many years of effort from
hundreds of our engineers. But now each generation arrives more quickly, building
on the creativity that has gone before.

Imagination Around the World
The R&D that enables our range of advanced technologies is the product of a
highly-skilled workforce of over 400 people, 80% of whom are engineers. This
engineering workforce operates from our headquarters outside London, UK, as well
as from centres in Chepstow and Leeds in the UK, and Pune in India, where this
year we opened a new development centre. 

We keep close to partners in key world territories. Imagination Technologies KK
(Japan) and Imagination Technologies Inc. (USA) are joined by business
development offices in Taiwan and Korea, and PURE Digital offices in China and
Germany.

We now have offices in eight countries and employees of over 25 nationalities. 

“We specialise in the
areas that entertain
people, help them
communicate and help
them enjoy the
information-rich world
around them”

Imagination Technologies Group plc
Annual Report 2007
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UK engineering, supported 
around the world
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How We Work

A Partner Focused Business
As well as selling single IP cores we focus increasingly on platform-level offerings
that group several IP cores together to create a more complete solution. This
approach not only commands higher license fees and royalties, but also expands
the range of our IP used in customer designs. We deliver a solution, not just
separate technologies, and this can range from fully supported, synthesizable IP to
complete SoCs, ready to manufacture.

Each major IP core embodies hundreds of accumulated years of experience and
effort, resulting in capabilities that attract the interest of many of the largest
players in these markets. And now these cores are shipping in high-volume
consumer products bearing some of the world’s biggest brands.

Our partners include many of the world’s top semiconductor manufacturers, fast-
moving fabless semiconductor companies and leading consumer electronics brands.
Imagination is committed to working closely in step with our partners’ long-term
strategies, and most of our partners return to us for further licences.

As the value of our IP becomes more important to product manufacturers, we’re
now becoming more closely involved with these companies as well. These growing
relationships help to accelerate the ‘pull’ for our semiconductor partners’ products,
creating a momentum for future success.

We work with the product manufacturers to advise them on the capabilities and
trends of new technologies. This also ensures that we target their segments better
with our future roadmap.

In new technology areas we typically engage with a lead partner first. This
engagement, while still in the earlier stages of refining and completing the IP
enables us to minimize risk and make sure we get the IP right first time for a new
and demanding market. After that initial engagement, repeat business is easier and
the IP becomes progressively more mature and widely licensable.

While at the sharp-edge our engagements with lead partners help define our
ongoing IP roadmap, we also foster new business by providing access to our IP for
start-up companies through a range of creative commercial arrangements.

“Our partners include
many of the world’s top
semiconductor
manufacturers, fast-
moving fabless
semiconductor
companies and leading
consumer electronics
brands”

10

A selection of world famous brands
with Imagination inside
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Customer Focus – Close Relationships 
Imagination provides IP to partners including Centrality Communications, Freescale,
Frontier Silicon, Future Waves, Intel, Mavrix, NEC, NXP, Renesas, Samsung, Sharp,
Sunplus and Texas Instruments. We are one of the world’s top ten silicon IP
companies (source: Gartner, 2006), and the leading company for application-
specific IP.

Our business model is based on IP licensing with up-front license fees as well as
royalties when silicon devices are shipped which use our IP. Additionally,
Imagination offers a wide range of services including tools, support, customization
and full SoC design. We are proud that a significant majority of our customers
choose to expand their relationships with us across multiple market areas and
generations of products.

A significant customer category to have emerged for IP licensing is the fabless
company: a company which creates and sells chips, but doesn’t own the factories
in which those chips are made. During the start-up process these companies are
generally backed by venture capital companies which are usually focused on the
simple, and sensible, desire to reduce risk on what are often very significant
investments. 

Given that modern chips are expected to integrate many functions, venture capital
companies have been a force steering fabless start-ups away from developing all
the required technologies in-house and towards taking more complementary cores
from the IP industry in order to reduce risk and time to market.

This naturally leads to the shortest ‘time-to-money’, which is a key element in high-
risk fabless investments.

One major benefit we bring to our licensees is a strong support capability totally
focused on solving the most difficult problems in specific and challenging areas of
silicon design. 

Alongside our support we provide software, which typically ranges from drivers for
key APIs over multiple operating systems, to system integration reference code,
tutorial examples and much more. Indeed, as much as 50% of the total
development time for complex hardware IP is likely to be supporting software of
some form, an area in which we excel over the smaller IP vendors.

Imagination Technologies Group plc
Annual Report 2007
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World-class R&D creates an industry-leading
IP product roadmap 

IP core licensees



“Lower product costs,
reduced power
consumption, enhanced
performance and a
differentiated end-
product feature set
enable our customers to
lead in their chosen
markets”
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The necessity for IP vendors to supply an expansive toolkit of software, tools and
ecosystem support will only increase as IP becomes more and more central to
modern SoC requirements.

Another benefit we bring to our licensees is our complementary marketing resource
and focused ecosystems. These capabilities, when properly integrated and aligned
with our licensees’ own infrastructure, deliver a total pre-sales promotion and post-
sales support offering across shows, events, networking and online marketing.

We are often asked about how our IP fits into our customers’ design-cycle. This
diagram shows the typical process and time-scale from the licensing of our IP to
branded products appearing based on our customers’ SoCs.

Our Core Technologies
Because of the cost of creating silicon devices which can target the wide range of
possible end markets – even the cheapest silicon devices can cost millions of dollars
to produce – silicon companies are increasingly moving to more-highly
programmable and configurable devices. We enable this with our programmable,
configurable and highly multi-functional IP. 

We supply the IP building blocks that enable the creation of SoC solutions with
lower product costs, reduced power consumption, enhanced performance and a
differentiated end-product feature set that enables our customers to lead in their
chosen markets.

Our unique, patented technologies help established markets like television, radio,
mobile computing and gaming to evolve, and enable new markets, like in-car
navigation, mobile TV and new kinds of computing such as the mobile internet, to
establish themselves.

Imagination develops complementary licensable IP for multimedia processing across
three technology families:

for graphics, video and display

for embedded DSP and RISC

for multi-standard communications

These three technology families offer over 20 major licensable cores, available
either individually or in combination as a pre-verified subsystem. 

IP Areas OOutlined
continued
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We know that our key technologies and associated deliverables are critical for our
customers. That’s why our IP is fully synthesizable and supported with industry-
leading tools and ecosystems.

PowerVR
The PowerVR technology family includes IP for multimedia graphics, video and
display cores for a number of key markets. The scalability of PowerVR 3D
technology has enabled us to effectively target mobile devices such as mobile
phones and PDAs, and higher performance systems for car navigation, digital TV
and advanced gaming.

PowerVR 2D/3D graphics cores combine image quality with bandwidth efficiency,
low power consumption, high system latency tolerance and scalability. PowerVR
video IP is flexible and comprehensive, covering all key technologies for mobile
devices and digital TV. Scalable and bandwidth-efficient, PowerVR display and
image processing offers our partners strong differentiation in the competitive TV
and flat-panel markets, especially in digital TV and HDTV.

PowerVR combines a unique method of real-time 3D rendering, using deferred
texturing and screen tiling, with highly-integrated 2D, innovative and flexible video
processing and advanced display technologies.

The scalable PowerVR architecture enables high-performance graphics and image
quality while minimizing silicon area, memory requirements and power
consumption. PowerVR divides the screen into small tiles so that more processing
can take place on chip rather than in external memory. Well suited to mobile and
embedded applications because of its power efficiency, PowerVR is also scalable to
high-end applications in the PC, mains powered consumer, games consoles and
arcade markets.

PowerVR MBX is already the de facto standard for mobile 3D, 2D and vector
graphics acceleration and is being used today by the majority of leading
semiconductor companies for their mobile graphics solutions.

The PowerVR SGX programmable Graphics Processing Unit (GPU) family targets
next-generation embedded multimedia processing. PowerVR SGX enables a
powerful and flexible solution for all forms of multimedia processing, including
3D/2D/vector graphics, advanced anti-aliasing, video codecs, and image processing.

ENSIGMA
The ENSIGMA Universal Communications Core (UCC) is a scalable, programmable,
multi-standard and flexible coprocessor IP core for communication-intensive
broadcast and wireless applications.

UCC is a software-defined multi-standard receiver and is highly relevant to digital
radio, global digital TV and analogue TV (including mobile TV), and wireless and
mobile communication systems. ENSIGMA-based IP solutions already dominate in
markets such as DAB digital radio.

Imagination Technologies Group plc
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Partners ccontinued

ENSIGMA IP enables multi-standard reception with low power consumption for
handheld devices. A version of UCC underpins our multi-standard mobile TV
platforms. 

A multi-standard solution for the digital broadcast markets is vital. The unique
commercial pressures associated with this market, and the growing awareness of
the benefits of adopting regional IP-based standards means that these markets are
each adopting different standards – sometimes several within one region. 

Our multi-standard capability is particularly important to technologies, like mobile
TV, which are establishing themselves on phone handsets. Just as mobile phones
‘roam’ between different countries, mobile broadcast receivers based on ENSIGMA
IP will work with multiple world standards. By using the same engine for both TV
and radio, system integrators can create a unique solution that appeals to truly
mobile end users.

META
META is a revolutionary multi-threaded RISC/DSP processor core architecture
capable of running many real-time tasks simultaneously – a key requirement of
modern embedded applications. For example, in a TV application one META thread
can run the audio, one can manage the video/demodulation hardware and one can
run the operating system and user interface. META is complementary to our
PowerVR and ENSIGMA IP cores and is the ideal glue for holding together
advanced applications SoCs.

The META multi-threaded processor core has multiple hardware programming
contexts, known as ‘threads’, that operate independently and concurrently,
allowing more functionality than with a single processor core. Highly efficient, it
can switch between threads in a single cycle for maximised real-time processing. 

META is a coherent multi-threaded design supporting a single external memory
system – a technology that is very SoC friendly because it copes with long latency
by thread-switching to maximize efficiency and eliminate processing bottlenecks. 

META is the ideal solution for SoCs which require concurrent multimedia,
communication and general purpose functionality in a small, low-power silicon
footprint, and is ideal for unified memory solutions, i.e., product designs which
only use one external memory device for all parts of the system. 

META-based devices also have software advantages over multi-processor solutions:
the inherent coherency and flexibility of the META architecture enables
independent parallel software development for the same SoC.

META technology was originally proven in our graphics and video IP cores but now
several million META-based devices have been shipped into the digital radio, digital
TV and mobile TV markets.

The META processor is complemented by a range of software optimized for the
DSP capabilities of the instruction set. An extensive range of audio codecs is
available, as well as an optimized Linux implementation; MeOS, our own low level
real-time operating system; and a full TCP/IP internet client protocol stack. 

“By combining our three
key technologies our
customers can create a
world of products across
all the key consumer
electronics markets”
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CodeScape
The unique combination of optimized hardware blocks and programmability means that
our customers need world-class tools to exploit the programmability of our IP cores.

Our sophisticated CodeScape development tools enable our partners to rapidly
prototype and integrate their SoC designs. This world class Integrated Development
Environment (IDE) allows users of our technologies to work in one consistent
toolchain environment, while developing, debugging and characterising the
software working within each IP core. This unique approach substantially improves
development times for SoC software, whilst providing access to the full capabilities
of our IP cores in a well controlled, easy-to-use toolchain.

CodeScape also includes a range of hardware debug and development boxes,
creating a total solution for SoC and system development.

Flexible, Fundamental Technologies
Our three key technology families – PowerVR, META, and ENSIGMA – are extremely
flexible and customizable, enabling us to address many markets.

By combining our three key technologies our customers can create a world of
products across all the key consumer electronics markets: mobile multimedia,
mobile computing and PC, navigation and information systems, TV and consumer
video, and mobile TV.

Our IP does this because its design is fundamentally multi-standard and multi-
threaded, offering a refined balance of programmability and optimized hardware,
as well as architectural and chip-level elements designed to ensure small silicon
area and low power consumption.

Imagination Technologies Group plc
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Markets ccontinued

Our partners can further minimize design time and time to market, and reduce
verification time and risk, by utilizing our growing range of IP ‘platforms’. Our IP
platforms enable our partners to reduce the overall complexity of SoC projects by
not mixing IP from a variety of sources. Choosing a single source of SoC IP reduces
time to market as the IP can be largely pre-verified and proven as part of the IP
platform.

Most companies in our industry are highly-specialised and there are none with the
same broad spectrum of offerings as Imagination. 

By taking several IP cores from us our licensees can enjoy economies of scale and
prevent the phenomena known as ‘royalty stacking’ (increasing the outgoing
royalties on a chip beyond sensible limits by using IP from multiple vendors). This
approach also enables us to offer our licensees economies of scale.

IMGworks – SoC Implementation Services
Each SoC needs to incorporate a wide range of functionality to survive in an
increasingly diverse and competitive market. We are totally focused on developing
the best possible implementations of these functions. 

Our technologies help our partners to win very significant end customers for chip
products that integrate our technologies.

IMGworks, our internal SoC development group, backs up our IP offerings with
extensive SoC design-flow know-how and services ranging from IP customization,
to support for integration and physical design, and even complete SoC chip
designs. We also provide a range of support IP such as SoC-level infrastructure and
a range of software components.

Support Programmes
The PowerVR Insider ecosystem programme provides comprehensive support for
developers, publishers and middleware developers as well as extensive co-marketing
opportunities for product manufacturers, content developers and semiconductor
companies.

Created to promote and endorse excellence at all levels of the mobile and
embedded graphics ecosystem, from silicon providers to games developers,
PowerVR Insider is the comprehensive community for leaders in 3D device and
content development. 

More than 1500 individual members are signed up to the PowerVR Insider
ecosystem program across hundreds of companies

Comprehensive support ecosystems for the META and ENSIGMA technology
families are now being planned.

“Most companies in our
industry are highly
specialised and there are
none with the same
broad spectrum of
offerings as Imagination”
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As well as strong licensing partnerships, Imagination has a dynamic industry
presence, working alongside industry bodies and other leading technology
companies in application areas of particular relevance to our business strategy. 

These include: operating system & Java Virtual Machine providers including ALT,
Aplix, Esmertec, Hi Corporation, Mentor/Nucleus, Microsoft, MonteVista, QNX,
Seaweed, Superscape and Symbian; industry associations including DRDB, DTG,
DVB Forum, FLO Forum, IMDR, Khronos, MIPI, and WorldDMB; computer assisted
design companies such as Cadence, Magma, and Synopsys; benchmarking groups
including FutureMark, Kishonti and MBRAI; and a wide range of middleware and
3D application developers.

Via our PowerVR Insider programme, and customer initiatives like the Mobile
Gaming Development Alliance, we also work closely with middleware and content
developers such as Acrodea, Aspyr Media, Barking Lizards, Bling Games/Lagardere
Active, EA, Fathammer, Ideaworks3D, Polarbit, Pulse Interactive, TAT, and The Code
Monkeys.

Market Update
Our technologies enhance core functionality and enable differentiation in the most
significant consumer electronics areas, resulting in products with greater appeal to
consumers. Our R&D is focused on solving many of the most challenging demands
of emerging markets, such as how to make multi-standard receivers or balance
advanced multimedia and low power consumption in mobile products. 

Our IP enables mobile TV devices to roam globally and adapt to local services,
improves TV images, enables video and 3D content on mobile phones, and provides
wide feature sets and great sound for digital radio. It does all this while increasing
portability by optimizing battery life as well as functionality, enabling worldwide
products and reducing product cost compared to competing technologies.

Digital Radio & Audio
DAB digital radio has now reached 5 million units in the UK, and is in 15% of UK
households. DAB has reinvigorated the now rapidly growing UK radio market and
effectively replaced analogue radio. There is much more adoption yet to come as
business worldwide expands both with DAB and the new DAB+ standard, which we
are one of the first to support.

We have maintained our approximate 70% market share in DAB technology this
year, particularly through our partnership with Frontier Silicon and our PURE Digital
division. More than 150 end-user radio and digital audio products from many top-
tier brands use our META and ENSIGMA technologies.

Imagination Technologies Group plc
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Markets ccontinued

We have a strong roadmap across digital radio and audio and will continue using
DAB as one of our strategic markets to secure our leadership in home audio, whilst
also encouraging convergence (since our technology also supports MP3, CD, etc.)
and support for other digital broadcast standards like Internet radio.

Mobile Multimedia
According to Gartner the mobile phone market reached 990 million units shipped
in 2006, and is set to rise to more than 1.2 billion units in 2011. The
smart/entertainment and feature phone segments are the fastest growing and
hardware-enabled 3D graphics are becoming a significant feature in new phone
models for this sector. Indeed, some forecasts show the smartphone market alone
rising to more than 360 million units by 2012.

Our PowerVR MBX and PowerVR SGX IP families are in use by leading chip makers,
including Freescale, Intel, NEC, NXP, Renesas, Samsung and Texas Instruments.
Their products are being used by many of the leading branded manufacturers in
this market such as Motorola, Nokia, Sony Ericsson, and most OEM suppliers to
NTT DoCoMo.

Over 20 SoCs using our IP are now committed for this market by our licensees.

“Our PowerVR MBX and
PowerVR SGX IP families
are in use by leading chip
makers, including
Freescale, Intel, NEC,
NXP, Renesas, Samsung
and Texas Instruments”
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Car Navigation and Information Systems
Both the in-car and Personal Navigation Device (PND) markets are creating growing
demands for advanced 3D graphics in order to more realistically represent the
world. Added to this is the potential for advanced user interfaces to meet the
growing demand for multimedia electronics in the car, including navigation, high-
end audio and even virtual dashboards. 

The user interface for the automotive market is especially demanding: for safety
reasons it is essential that the driver spends as little time as possible worrying about
how to control these systems, and as much attention as possible on the road
ahead.

The rapidly growing advanced in-car graphics market is still led by Japan, but we
are now seeing the first products using our IP shipping in western markets. We
now have four active semiconductor partners in this area: Renesas, NEC, Centrality
and Freescale. Renesas, a lead partner in this area, already has devices in
production for both after-market and factory-fit. The others will follow suit in both
in-car and PND segments, in products ranging from dedicated navigation solutions
to highly-integrated driver information and entertainment solutions.

Mobile Computing/UMPC
The traditional desktop PC is now more than matched by its portable counterparts.
These portables range from desktop replacement notebooks through to thin and
light ultra-portable systems. Indeed, some forecasts indicate that by 2011 there will
be more laptop PCs shipped than desktops.

While smartphones like Nokia’s N95 now incorporate PDA
and PC features there are two new categories emerging at
the boundary between small notebooks and high-end
handsets: the Ultra-mobile PC (UMPC) and the Mobile
Internet Device (MID).

Intel is using our graphics and video IP in a growing range of these mobile PC
segments, with products expected Q1 2008.

TV, STB and Consumer Video
The analogue-to-digital transition is now progressing rapidly in the main consumer
electronics territories and flat-panel TVs are the mainstream choice. There remains
considerable opportunity in the emerging areas of HD resolution video, IPTV (TV
delivered over the Internet) and TV throughout the home, car and on the move. 

While IDTV (Integrated Digital TV) is a key growth area today, IPTV is a fast-
emerging segment which will be equally relevant. Both are developing market
segments for our IP. We previously established a relationship with Sharp as a lead
partner for the LCD TV market and now have other relationships firmly in place
which will lead to very exciting products in the near future. We have new
partnership engagements in progress too, although in this segment final product
delivery and volume ramp-up takes longer than some of the other segments in
which we are engaged.

As well as opportunities for video we are also finding that licensees are interested
in implementing 3D in TV products, particularly for user interfaces. These licensees
are taking a keen interest in our ENSIGMA roadmap.
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Mobile TV
Digital Mobile TV is radically different from the analogue mobile TV technologies –
none of which ever made significant market penetration. The reasons are simple:
digital mobile TV was designed from the ground up to work with robust reception
on the move; and now most people are already carrying handheld media devices or
phones into which mobile TV can be added.

However there are four major global terrestrial standards, which use different
modulation schemes and protocols. This means that separate receivers are normally
needed to receive each standard, even if the video and audio use similar coding
standards like H.264 or AAC+.

In order to overcome this significant hurdle and enable products which can be
used and sold worldwide we have created a unique multi-standard mobile TV
platform which can support any mix of these transmission standards, as well as a
growing range of digital radio standards. Our platform already fully supports 
DVB-H, T-DMB and ISDB-T ‘One Seg’ and we are evaluating others including
MediaFLO as well as emerging Chinese standards such as CMMB.

While the mobile TV market is too young to accurately forecast, commercially
launched broadcast networks are growing from nine (2006) to 13 (2007) and
Screen Digest forecasts 140 million global subscribers by 2011 – while some OEMs
predict much more.

We have four partners signed up in this area.

Markets ccontinued
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PURE 
As well as our Technology division, Imagination has a consumer electronics
division, PURE Digital, which integrates and promotes our technology, pathfinds
new market areas and creates award-winning consumer products.

In developing our technologies we strive to keep focused on how they will
empower and entertain. While there are many large electronics companies that
both design silicon and manufacture consumer products, it is unusual for IP
companies to engage directly with the end users of their technologies. However,
that is what Imagination does through PURE, in order to ensure we continue to
create IP with profound market relevance.

PURE plays a vital role in our strategy. It helps to ensure that the IP we develop is
strongly competitive in emerging technology markets and promoted and marketed
effectively. Most importantly it keeps us in touch with consumers and their
preferences and enthusiasms.

As a potential customer for SoCs designed by our licensees, PURE also becomes a
potentially attractive lead customer design-win for our licensees’ chips in end-user
products whenever appropriate.

The PURE brand encompasses groundbreaking and award-winning products that
have won strong media and public acclaim – with commensurate sales. We have,
over the past few years, refined the purpose of PURE to concentrate on emerging
markets such as that for DAB digital radio products. Not only was this activity
necessary to kick-start the DAB industry, but also it provides a strong case to prove
the value of our IP in products which have become, without argument, best in class.

This year PURE maintained its number one position in the digital radio market with
its comprehensive, award-winning product range and a highly recognised and
preferred brand. 

PURE continued to achieve full ranging with leading retailers and enjoyed another
strong Christmas period, a trend we expect to continue into the peak selling season
this year. In the UK, all major stores and retailers including John Lewis, Marks &
Spencer, Argos, Dixons, Comet, and Tesco now sell PURE products.

“PURE has maintained its
leadership through a
strategy that addresses
three key goals:
innovative features, 
cost-competitive
products and dominance
across all major market
segments in the radio
space”

Imagination Technologies Group plc
Annual Report 2007
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PURE has maintained its leadership of the DAB market through a strategy that has
aimed to address three key goals: innovative features, cost-competitive products
and dominance across all major market segments in the radio space.

PURE has always led in providing advanced and novel features, taking advantage of
the digital nature of DAB and the emergence of digital audio. These include
features such as pause/rewind/record, compact digital storage on SD Card, MP3
integration, USB upgradeability and the Electronic Programme Guide. We expect
PURE to continue to lead in areas such as the new DAB+ standard and with
ecologically sound products.

As well as leading on features, PURE has ensured it enables quality low-cost
products for its chosen markets so that its brand can secure maximum shelf space
and reach most consumers. New offerings this year will consolidate the position
earned by PURE’s highly successful sub-£50 ONE radio.

It is by engaging with consumers’ lifestyle choices that PURE now leads in all the
key radio segments, including portable, handheld, and clock. PURE has over 25%
market share in the UK. European shipments have continued to increase, a process
we expect to accelerate as DAB+ opens up new territories for DAB such as
Australia, Switzerland and Asia. 

We are excited that over the next few years PURE will expand into new markets
where it will use a growing portfolio of our latest IP technologies.

PURE Digital

“It is by engaging with
consumers’ lifestyle
choices that PURE now
leads in all the key radio
segments”
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Geoff Shingles 

(aged 68), CBE, BSc (Hons), FIEE, FBCS, Chairman. 

Geoff was, until April 1994, Executive Chairman of Digital Equipment Co.
Limited, where he served for 29 years. While at Digital, he worked both in the
U.S. and Continental Europe. He joined the board in 1994 becoming Chairman
in 1996. He is Non-Executive Chairman of Sarantel Group Plc and is also a
Non-Executive Director of a number of private companies.

Hossein Yassaie 

(aged 50), PhD, Chief Executive Officer. 

After attaining his PhD, Hossein was a research fellow at the University of
Birmingham. Prior to joining Imagination Technologies in February 1992, he
was with STMicroelectronics and Inmos for 8 years, where he set up and
managed the DSP and digital video developments. Ultimately he became
responsible for the system divisions, including research and development,
manufacturing and marketing. Hossein joined the board in 1995. He
previously held the position of Technical Director, before becoming Chief
Executive Officer in June 1998.

Trevor Selby 

(aged 49), BA (Hons), ACMA, Chief Financial Officer.

Trevor worked for the Dowty Group until 1992 holding senior finance
positions in several of the group’s information technology companies,
including Finance Director of Dowty Information Systems and latterly Finance
Director of Dowty Communications. He continued with the business after it
was acquired in 1992 becoming Director of Financial Planning and Analysis at
Cray Communications. He joined Imagination Technologies, and the board, in
1996 as Group Finance Director.

Imagination Technologies Group plc
Annual Report 2007
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Ian Pearson 

(aged 64), Dip Tech (Hons), C.Eng, FIEE, Non-Executive Director. 

Ian has over 30 years experience with companies specialising in semiconductor
design, manufacturing and management, with director level responsibilities.
These companies include Inmos and SGS Thompson. Currently, he acts as a
consultant specialising in the commercial exploitation of intellectual property
for the electronic and semiconductor industries. He joined the board as Non-
Executive Director in 1998 and is Chairman of the Remuneration Committee
and serves on the Audit Committee. Ian is the senior Non-Executive Director.
He is also a director of Iprias Limited.

David Hurst-Brown 

(aged 58), BSc (Hons), FSI, Non-Executive Director. 

David worked for most of his career in the securities industry. In 2002 he left
UBS, where, for more than 10 years he had worked in Corporate Finance as
adviser to a wide range of companies. David now works mainly as a consultant
and his Non-Executive Directorships include Anite plc, Ffastfill plc and KeyData
AIM VCT plc. He joined the board of Imagination Technologies as a Non-
Executive Director in September 2000 and is Chairman of the Audit Committee
and a member of the Remuneration Committee.
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Directors� Report

The Directors submit their annual report and audited financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2007.

Principal Activities and Business Review
The principal activities of the Group are the design, development and marketing of multimedia technology, and products incorporating this technology.
A review of business and financial developments and future prospects has been included in the Chief Executive�s Review. This incorporates
any significant events since the year end. Further details are included in pages 3 to 7 of the annual report.
The results of the Group for the year to 31st March 2007 are set out in detail in the Consolidated Income Statement on page 35.
The Directors do not propose the payment of a dividend (2006: £nil).
The key performance indicators used in the business are summarised below. The performance of the business in the terms of these indicators
is considered in the Chief Executives Review in pages 3 to 7 of the annual report.

2006 2007 %

Technology business
New licence Agreements 9 10 +11%
Licensing Revenue £9.0m £13.0m +44%
Partner Chip Design Wins 40 50 +25%
Partner Chips Shipping 13 18 +38%
Partner Chips Shipped (units) 11.9m 25.7m +115%
Royalty Revenue £5.6m £8.8m +57%

PURE Digital business
Revenue £20.7m £26.3m +27%
Operating Profit £1.4m £1.8m +33%

Group
Revenue £35.3m £48.1m +36%
Gross Profit £19.0m £27.1m +43%
Loss before taxation £6.9m £2.3m -66%
Net cash and cash equivalents £6.4m £9.6m +50%

As previously stated, the Group has moved the end of the financial year to 30th April. Royalties are becoming an increasingly important
revenue stream for the business and, taking into account the timing of royalty reporting by our partners, this will enable the business to be
able to provide a more accurate assessment of its royalty revenues at the close of financial periods. The current financial year will be
extended to 13 months; running from 1st April 2007 to 30th April 2008. Interim results will be announced for the 6 months to 30th
September 2007 and full year results for the 13 months to 30th April 2008. Thereafter financial years will run from 1st May to 30th April.

Principal Risks and Uncertainties
There are a number of risks and uncertainties which could impact the Group�s performance. The Group has a risk management structure in
place which is designed to identify, manage and mitigate business risk. The relevant structures are more fully described in the Group�s
internal control and risk management procedures in the Corporate Governance report on page 27.
The Group has experienced, and may in the future experience, fluctuations in the results of its operations. There are a number of factors that
can affect the results. For the Technology business, these include the timing of new licence agreements with partners, the achievement of
development project milestones and the timing and volume of products incorporating the Group�s technology shipped by our partners. The
Group seeks to reduce this risk by both broadening the number of partners who utilise the Group�s technology as well as widening the
number of market segments that are targeted by the Group�s partners. For the Group�s PURE Digital business, these factors also include the
continuation of the supply of products from Chinese manufacturers. The Group has increased the number of manufacturers for the Group�s
products to reduce the reliance on any one manufacturer.
The Group operates in fast moving competitive marketplaces characterised by rapid changes in technology. The Group�s result will be
impacted by the introduction of new technologies and products by the Group and by the Group�s competitors as they respond to these
changes in technology. In order to mitigate risk, the Group has detailed dialogue with existing partners, as well as systems companies and
industry bodies, in order to align its future products with advances in technology and market requirements.
As a technology business, the development and ownership of intellectual property is fundamental to the Group�s performance. Whilst the Group
relies on patent, copyright, trademark and other intellectual property laws to establish and protect its proprietary rights, it cannot be certain that its
proprietary rights will not be challenged, invalidated, circumvented or used without the Group�s authorisation. The Group mitigates the risk by
filing patents and trademarks as appropriate to protect its intellectual property and through monitoring technologies promoted by third parties.
The Group transacts licence and development agreements with customers and purchases of products for PURE Digital primarily in US dollars and,
therefore, the Group�s earnings are exposed to fluctuations in foreign exchange rates. The Group reviews its foreign exchange exposure on a
regular basis and, if there is a material exposure to exchange rate fluctuations and the Board considers it appropriate, the Group will reduce the
risk by currency hedging on net receivable/payable balances.
The Group�s performance is also subject to external macro economic conditions. Changes in factors such as interest rates, inflation, unemployment
and commodity prices can create uncertainty in the Group�s markets. As a result, potential customers may delay placing orders with the Group
and/or reduce the shipment of product incorporating the Group�s technology. In turn, both of these would adversely affect the Group�s result.

Research and Development
The Group spent £23,419,000 (2006: £20,649,000) on research and development and advanced technology projects.
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Donations
During the year the Group made donations for charitable purposes of £378 (2006: £180). There were no political donations during the year
(2006: £nil). The Parent Company made no donations in the current year (2006: £nil).

Directors
G S Shingles, H Yassaie, T Selby, I R Pearson and D A Hurst-Brown continued to serve as Directors throughout the year.
In accordance with the Company�s Articles of Association, G S Shingles, I R Pearson and D A Hurst-Brown retire by rotation at the Annual
General Meeting of the Company to be held on 25th July 2007 and will seek re-election at the meeting.
Executive Directors� service agreements are contracts of employment with a rolling notice period of less than one year.
Non-Executive Directors do not have any unexpired notice periods in their contracts.
The disclosable interests of Directors at 31st March 2007 including holdings, if any, of wives and children aged under 18 were as detailed in
the Remuneration Report on page 32 and remain unchanged at 24th May 2007.

Disclosure of information to auditors
The Directors who held office at the date of approval of this Directors� Report confirm that, so far as they are each aware, there is no relevant
audit information of which the Company�s auditors are unaware; and each Director has taken all the steps that he ought to have taken as a
Director to make himself aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the Company�s auditors are aware of that information.

Substantial Interests
As at 24th May 2007 the Company had been notified or was aware that the following had direct or indirect interests in 3% or more of the
share capital of the Company:

Ordinary Shares of 10p Percentage
in the Company Holding

SAAD Investment Company 34,850,979 16.0%
M & G Investment Management 28,753,141 13.2%
Schroder Investment Management 21,995,298 10.1%
Black Rock Investment Management 16,382,472 7.5%
AXA Financial SA 15,365,108 7.1%
Herald Investment Management 13,261,845 6.1%
Legal & General Investment Management 7,802,379 3.6%
Barclays Stockbrokers 6,566,847 3.0%

Going Concern Basis
After making enquiries, the Directors have a reasonable expectation that the Company and the Group have adequate resources to continue in
operational existence for the foreseeable future. For this reason, they continue to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the financial statements.

Employees
As an intellectual property business, considerable value is placed on the involvement of employees in the development of the business. This is
encouraged by the open environment in the Group and through the delegation of responsibility throughout the organisation. Presentations
are made to all staff on a regular basis to encourage a full understanding of the Group�s strategy and operational developments.
The Group is committed to the principle of equal opportunity in employment and to ensuring that no applicant or employee receives less
favourable treatment on the grounds of age, gender, disability, ethnic origin, political or other opinion, religion or sexual orientation.
Disability is not seen as an inhibitor to employment or career development. Employees who become disabled are, wherever possible, given
assistance to continue in their existing employment or to be trained for other positions.

Creditor payment policy
It is Group policy to agree payment terms with suppliers when negotiating contracts or transactions. 
The Group ensures that, subject to any necessary variations which may result from supplier related problems, the agreed payment terms are adhered to.
The number of days billings from suppliers outstanding to the Group at 31st March 2007 was 42 days (2006: 38 days). The Parent
Company is purely a holding Company with investments and does not have trade creditors.

Auditors
A resolution is to be proposed at the Annual General Meeting for the re-appointment of KPMG Audit Plc as auditors of the Company.

Special business at the Annual General Meeting
The Annual General Meeting will be held at 11.00 a.m. on 25th July 2007 at Imagination House, Home Park Estate, Kings Langley,
Hertfordshire, WD4 8LZ. Special Business to be transacted at the Meeting is set out in full in the Notice of the AGM. At the AGM on 25th
July 2007 we will be asking shareholders to approve resolutions to amend the Articles of Association following the introduction of the
Companies Act 2006 which will enable shareholders to receive information from the Company in an electronic format via our website. This
will mean that fewer paper copies will be produced which will provide cost and environmental benefits. If shareholders wish to continue to
receive a hard copy they can do so. After the AGM, the Company will publish on its website the proxy votes cast in respect of each
resolution voted on at the AGM.

By order of the Board
A Llewellyn

Secretary
24th May 2007
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Corporate Governance

Compliance with the Combined Code
The Board is responsible to shareholders for the effective direction and control of the Group and this report describes the framework of
corporate governance and internal controls that the Directors have established to enable them to carry out this responsibility. It also explains
how the Group has applied the provisions of Section 1 of the 2003 FRC Combined Code on Corporate Governance (�the Code�), and the one
area of non-compliance which is noted at the end of this section.
The Board has applied the principles of the Code as follows:

The Board 
The Company is controlled through the Board of Directors, which throughout the year consisted of 5 directors, 2 non-executive and 3
executive, including the Chairman who carries out his duties on a part-time basis (40 days per annum). Biographical details for each of the
directors are set out on pages 23-24.
The Company maintains insurance cover for its Directors and Officers with a cover limit of £5,000,000.

The Chairman
The Chairman, G Shingles, is responsible for the leadership of the Board, ensuring its effectiveness on all aspects of its role, setting its agenda
and ensuring that the Directors receive accurate, timely and clear information. The Chairman facilitates the effective contribution of Non-
Executive Directors and ensures constructive relations between Executive and Non-Executive Directors. The Chairman is also responsible for
ensuring that there is effective communication with shareholders.
Details of the Chairman�s other professional commitments are given on page 23. The Board is satisfied that these do not interfere with the
performance of his duties for the Company.

The Chief Executive 
The Chief Executive Officer, H Yassaie, is responsible for the day-to-day management of the business and for proposing, developing and
implementing the Group�s strategy as agreed by the Board. The Chief Executive Officer carries this out in close consultation with the
Chairman and the Board. The Chief Executive Officer is also responsible, with the executive team, for implementing the decisions of the
Board and its Committees.

Senior Independent Director
Mr Pearson is the senior Independent Non-Executive Director. He acts as a conduit to the Board for communication of shareholder concerns
when other channels of communication are inappropriate and ensures that the performance evaluation of the Chairman is conducted
effectively.
Details of Mr Pearson�s other professional commitments are given on page 24. 
Mr Pearson joined the Company in 1998 and has therefore been connected with the Group for more than 9 years. In addition, both Non-
Executive Directors have shareholdings in the Company as disclosed in the table on page 32. The Board continues to monitor the
composition of the Board in line with the recommendations of the Code. The Board has considered the independence of these Directors
with particular care. All Directors contribute significantly through their individual skills and their considerable knowledge of both the
Company and the industry, and they currently provide continuity and an overall balance to the Board. In particular, they all continue to
demonstrate a strong independence of management in the manner in which they discharge their responsibilities as Directors. Accordingly,
the Board considers that I R Pearson and D R Hurst-Brown are independent Non-Executive Directors.

Operation of the Board
The Board usually meets formally on a monthly basis and is responsible for the overall direction, strategy and performance of the Group.
There is a formal agenda of items to be addressed at Board Meetings which includes matters specifically reserved for the Board which
principally comprise: group wide business and financial reviews, major capital or revenue expenditure, acquisitions or disposals, onerous
business terms, treasury and dividend policy, risk items and board appointments. The Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer
respectively prepare full operational and financial reviews for each Board Meeting. All Directors have access to the advice and services of the
company secretary, who is responsible to the Board for ensuring that board procedures are complied with. Both the appointment and
removal of the company secretary are a matter for the Board as a whole.
By also attending and monitoring the content of meetings and agendas, the Directors consider that there is sufficient structure to ensure the
Company�s strategy and control remain in its hands. 
The Board also meets on a regular basis with senior management from the Group�s divisions to assess the strategic direction of the business.
The objective is to assess and decide upon the key technologies/products/markets for the business to exploit by assessing the potential
returns against the risks. The result is a common vision of the strategy of the business and an understanding of the function and goals that
each division has within the strategy. A divisional business plan is built around executing the strategy.
The Executive Management Board for the business meets on a monthly basis, with attendance by Executive Directors. The full activities of
each division are reviewed to ensure that strategic and business goals are being achieved. 

Performance Evaluation
The Board reviews its performance during the year, including the performance of the Audit and Remuneration Committees, and the
performance of each Director. In the case of the Board and the Committees, the assessment of performance was carried out by considering
the objectives of each body and assessing the degree to which these objectives have been met. In the case of each Director, the performance
review takes into account an individual�s level of commitment to the role, effective contribution and achievement in carrying out the role.
The Non-Executive Directors are responsible for performance evaluation of the Chairman, taking into account the views of the Executive
Directors. 
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Throughout the year, the Chairman periodically held meetings with the Non-Executive Directors without the Executive Directors being
present and, in addition, the Non-Executives periodically held meetings without the Chairman or the Executive Directors being present.

Board Appointments
As the Board is small, a Nominations Committee has not been appointed. All nominations to the Board will be considered by the full Board.
Whilst the Board considers the appropriate composition of the Board from time to time, no specific changes were considered during the year.
All Directors, in accordance with the Code, will submit themselves for re-election at least every three years. Any newly appointed Directors are
required to submit themselves for re-election at the first AGM following their appointment. 

Audit Committee

Members of the Committee
During the financial year, the Audit Committee comprised D A Hurst-Brown as Chairman and I R Pearson as a member.
The Code requires that the Board be satisfied that at least one member of the Committee has recent and relevant financial experience. The
Board has considered this requirement and, taking into account the financial background of the Chairman of the Committee, is satisfied that
this requirement is met, and that the Committee has sufficient experience to fulfil its obligations in an effective manner.

Responsibilities
The Committee is required to satisfy itself as to the adequacy and effectiveness of internal controls and compliance procedures within the
Group and that the principles, policies and practices adopted in the preparation of the accounts of the Group and the annual financial
statements comply with statutory requirements. The Audit Committee has written terms of reference which are available to be viewed at the
AGM. 
In discharging its responsibilities, the Committee reviews the interim and annual financial statements and the terms and scope under which
the external auditors are appointed or reappointed. The Committee also reviews and monitors the external auditor�s independence and
objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process, taking into consideration relevant UK professional and regulatory requirements. The
Committee holds meetings with the external auditors whenever it feels it needs advice or clarification of issues, but in any case the Audit
Committee meets formally with the external auditors at least once per year, with a portion of the meeting without the Executive Directors
present. The Committee is also responsible for determining and reviewing the policy for engaging the external auditor in respect of non-
audit work.
The Audit Committee reviews arrangements by which staff of the Group may in confidence raise concerns over possible improprieties in
financial reporting or other matters.

Remuneration Committee
A description of the composition, responsibility and operation of the remuneration committee is set out in the Remuneration Report on
pages 30-32 which is prepared in accordance with Schedule 7A to the Companies Act 1985.

Board and Committee Meeting Attendance
The attendance of Directors at Board meetings and Committee meetings is set out below:

Main Board Audit Remuneration
Meetings Committee Committee

No. of meetings 9 4 4

G S Shingles 8 2* 3*
H Yassaie 9 2* 2*
T Selby 9 4* 2*
I R Pearson 9 4 4
D A Hurst-Brown 8 4 4

Independent Professional Advisers
The Directors are expected, and encouraged, to bring necessary matters to the attention of the Board so that the relevant professional
advisers can be briefed and authorised to provide the required independent advice. However, all Directors can, if they feel it necessary, take
independent professional advice in furtherance of their duties, at the Company�s expense.

Financial Reporting
The financial position of the Company is discussed in the Chairman�s Statement, Chief Executive�s Review and the Directors� Report giving a
balanced and understandable assessment of the Company�s position and prospects.
After reviewing current performance and plans, and making enquiries considered appropriate, the Directors are satisfied that at the time of
approving the Financial Statements adequate resources are available to the Group to enable it to continue in business for the foreseeable
future. For this reason the Directors believe it is appropriate to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the financial statements.

Relations with Shareholders
The Company encourages two-way communications with shareholders. The Board endeavours to maintain good relationships with its
institutional shareholders by holding regular meetings after results with further dialogue as requested. Shareholders can register to receive
the Company�s press releases via the internet and any queries from individual shareholders are answered promptly by a nominated person. 
Shareholders have at least 21 days notice of the Annual General Meeting. In addition to the formal AGM proceedings, the Directors make a
full presentation to shareholders to explain developments in the business over the last year and this is followed by an open question and
answer session which provides shareholders with the opportunity to ask Directors questions about the business. The AGM is held at the
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Company�s main office in Kings Langley where shareholders can visit demonstration rooms displaying the Group�s technology and meet
senior divisional employees.
The Non-Executive Directors have access to independent feedback from shareholders after results presentations which, supported by periodic
attendance at analyst and shareholder presentations, provides them with an understanding of the views of major shareholders. The Senior
Non-Executive Director is available for dialogue with major shareholders if required.

Corporate Social Responsibility 
The Company is primarily accountable to its shareholders, however it also recognises that it has responsibilities to other stakeholders which
include employees, customers, suppliers and the local community where it operates. The Board accepts its responsibilities to be accountable
to all stakeholders. All employees are highly regarded, valued and their employment and other rights are respected. The Group is committed
to the important principles of equal opportunity which is reflected in the Company�s recruitment, disciplinary and grievance policies. The
Company is dedicated to supplying products of top quality to meet its customers� requirements in a manner that is consistent with high
environmental and ethical standards. The Company aims to make a contribution to the communities in which it operates.

Environmental Statement 
The Board recognises the increasing importance of environmental issues although since the Group is not involved in heavy industry or any
direct manufacturing activity, the Group has negligible impact on the environment. Company premises are composed of offices with the
main activity in the Group being the development of hardware and software designs by employees working on computers, involving neither
the use of hazardous substances or complex waste emissions.
This year the Group has increased its promotion and support practices for the use of resources in an environmentally friendly manner. The
Group already had in place energy saving measures, recycling components such as printed circuit boards, toner cartridges, surplus packaging
and paper and discouraging company vehicles with only 8 vehicles throughout the Group. The Group is now proactively recycling all paper
and cardboard.
With respect to the Group�s sub-contract manufacturing activities, the Group has taken the necessary action to comply with the provisions of
the Use of Certain Hazardous Substances in Electrical Equipment Regulations 2005 (RoHS) and Waste Electrical and Electronic Equipment
(WEEE). The company have joined the compliance scheme REPIC to meet our obligations as a producer of EEE and are members of the
Distributor Takeback Scheme run by Valpak to meet our obligations as direct sellers.
The Group is reducing its environmental impact throughout its supply chain for the PURE Digital division by a variety of measures, including
maximising the use of sea-freight for imports, reducing road traffic by using train services for trans-UK freight transfers and also the recycling
of packaging materials at all warehouse sites.
The Company intends to seek shareholders approval at the AGM to enable it to communicate to shareholders electronically which will
reduce paper copies of correspondence and will have environmental benefits.

Internal Controls/Risk Management
The Board is responsible for the Group�s system of internal control and for reviewing its effectiveness. This covers all material controls
including financial, operational, compliance and risk management systems. However, such a system is designed to manage rather than
eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can provide only reasonable and not absolute assurances against material
misstatement or loss.
In compliance with the requirements of the Code, the Directors reviewed the existing risk management processes in place within the
operating businesses to document and report on significant areas of business risks and their controls. There is an ongoing process for the
effective identification, evaluation and management of significant risks faced by the Group.
This process was in place throughout the financial year and continues to be in place at the date of approval of the Annual Report and
Financial Statements. Under this process the Board reviews risks associated with the business on a regular basis.
Executive members of the Board have day to day involvement in all aspects of the business and attend monthly management meetings at
which both financial and operational performance against target is reviewed. Any items found during the monthly review which do not
meet previously agreed targets are discussed in order to ensure that any corrective actions are implemented. An assessment of specific
operational risk areas is presented to the Board for review on a regular basis.
A detailed annual budget is set and approved by the Board. Expenditure is controlled against formal authorisation limits. Major items of
capital and revenue expenditure and all treasury matters are reserved for members of the Board alone.
The Board and the Audit Committee has considered the need for an Internal Auditor, and, after taking into account the size of the
organisation, has concluded that at this stage there is no requirement. 

Compliance Statement
The Listing Rules require the Board to report on compliance with the provisions of the Code throughout the accounting period. Save the
exception listed below, the Company has complied throughout the current accounting period ended 31st March 2007 with the provisions
set out in Section 1 of the Code.
As the Board is small, a Nominations Committee has not been appointed consisting solely of Non Executive Directors. All nominations to the
Board will be considered by the full Board.
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Remuneration Report

Remuneration Committee
The Board has established a Remuneration Committee (�the Committee�) to advise it on an appropriate remuneration policy. During the
financial year the members of the Committee have been I R Pearson and D A Hurst-Brown. The Committee Chairman is I R Pearson. The
Remuneration Committee has written terms of reference which are available to be viewed at the AGM.
The Committee is responsible for determining and agreeing with the Board the remuneration packages of the Executive Directors, including
basic salary, annual bonuses, awards under the Restricted Share Plan (�Awards�), the allocation of share options and LTIPs and the terms of
any performance conditions to apply to the exercise of such rights, pension rights, determining their terms and conditions of service, and any
compensation payments and to ensure that such remuneration levels are appropriate and acceptable. The remuneration of I R Pearson and
D A Hurst-Brown is established by the Executive Directors of the Board. The Committee also has discussions with the Board in relation to the
Board�s annual report to shareholders on the Group�s policy on the remuneration of Executive Directors and in particular the Directors�
Remuneration Report, as required by the Companies Act 1985 (as amended), the Code and the Listing Rules of the Financial Services
Authority. No Board member is involved in deciding his own remuneration package. 

Remuneration Policy
In implementing its policy, the Committee gives full consideration to the Principles of Good Governance set out in the Combined Code with
reference to Directors� remuneration. The key objectives of the remuneration policy are to ensure that pay and benefits packages are
sufficiently competitive to attract, develop and retain high calibre executives. During the course of the financial year the Committee carried
out a review of the benefits package. The review compared the remuneration of directors of similar sized companies in similar industry types.
As a result of this review, and planned future reviews, appropriate changes were, and will be, made to ensure a competitive and well-
balanced package is maintained. It also seeks to align individual reward and incentives with the performance of the Group and, hence, with
the interests of the shareholders.

Directors� Remuneration
The main elements of the Executive Directors remuneration are: 

Basic salary
To determine the specific levels of salary and benefit, the Committee draws on a wide
range of data, market conditions, as well as Company and individual performance. 

Share Incentives
The Committee aims to ensure that individuals are fairly rewarded for their
contribution to the success of the Company. At the EGM in July 2006, shareholders
approved the introduction of both a Restricted Share Plan and a Save As You Earn
Plan. The Committee believes that this new incentive plan is consistent with the shift
in the market away from options and towards shares and will motivate and retain
employees, encourage employee share ownership, lower dilution over time and avoid
underwater incentives. Share options are no longer being granted, with the focus of
incentives turning to annual awards under the Restricted Share Plan and annual
invitations to join the SAYE scheme. There are a number of share options outstanding
under the old schemes, including approved and unapproved key employee schemes,
an Enterprise Management Incentive (EMI) scheme and a Long-Term Incentive Plan
(LTIP) scheme. 
The discretionary Awards under the Restricted Share Plan have performance criteria
based on the increase in the share price relative to the increase in the FTSE All Share
Index and an increase in the royalty income over a three year period. The performance conditions are detailed on page 32.
Discretionary options have been granted at market value whilst SAYE options have been issued at a 20% discount to market value.
The discretionary options have performance criteria based on the achievement of targets in the market price of Imagination Technologies
shares. The discretionary options issued to Directors have the performance conditions attached to them as set out on page 32. The SAYE
scheme does not have performance conditions. 

Bonus
Due to the limited number of shares available for distribution under the Restricted Share Plan, the Committee has during the year put in
place a cash bonus scheme (�Bonus�) for H Yassaie and T Selby calculated by reference to the value of 244,000 shares for H Yassaie and
64,500 shares for T Selby. This Bonus will be payable in 2009 subject to the achievement of certain targets. There are two target elements
for the Bonus. The first element, over 50% of the Bonus, is based on the performance targets set out above for the Restricted Share Plan;
this element of the Bonus, when aggregated with the equivalent bonus across other eligible employees shall not exceed 10% of the Group�s
earnings before interest in the financial year 2008/9. The second element, also over 50% of the Bonus, is payable based on the Group�s
earnings before interest being £10m or greater in the financial year 2008/9. This element shall cut-in when the Group�s earnings before
interest meet £5m, increasing on a straight line basis until the full bonus is payable when the Group�s earnings before interest meet £10m. If
the earnings before interest are less than £5m, no Bonus will be paid for this element. The maximum Bonus for both elements is capped at
the equivalent of £3 per share.

Pension policy
Executive Directors are eligible to become members of the Group Personal Pension Plan which is a defined contribution scheme. There are no
special arrangements for Executive Directors. The Company has been advised on all aspects of the pension scheme by its Independent
Financial Advisor, HACL.
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Service contracts
The Executive Directors of Imagination Technologies Group plc all have ongoing service contracts dated 31st March 1998 which are subject
to 6 months notice. The Committee regards the notice period in these contracts as being appropriate. In the event of termination of an
Executive Director�s service contract there are no specific compensation entitlement provisions in the contracts with respect to termination,
other than the notice period. 

Remuneration policy for Non-Executive Directors
The remuneration for Non-Executive Directors consists of fees for their services in connection with Board and Committee meetings and
where appropriate for devoting additional time and expertise for the benefit of the Company. Non-Executive Directors have letters of
appointment. I Pearson�s and D Hurst-Brown�s letters are dated respectively 14th April 1998 and 4th August 2000. Non-Executive Directors
are re-elected as directors, and thereby reappointed, at least every three years. I R Pearson and D Hurst-Brown will seek re-election at this
year�s AGM. Non-Executive Directors are not eligible for pension scheme membership and do not participate in any of the Group's bonus,
share option or other incentive schemes. The remuneration of Non-Executive Directors is determined by the Executive Directors of the Board.

Other directorships
The other directorships of the Non-Executive Directors are set out on page 24 The other directorships of G Shingles, who carries out his
executive duties with the Group on a part time basis, are also set out on page 23. The Board is satisfied that these directorships do not
interfere with the performance of directors' duties for the Company.
The following information has been audited:

Directors� Emoluments
The following table is intended to bring together the value of the various emoluments of remuneration received by each Director during the
year.

Salary Benefits Total Pension Pension
and fees Bonus in kind Total 2006 2007 2006

£ £ £ £ £ £ £

Executive Directors
G S Shingles 86,000 � 1,791 87,791 86,955 � �
H Yassaie 187,400 � 933 188,333 185,955 13,230 12,600
T Selby 137,800 � 933 138,733 132,705 9,510 9,056

Non-Executive Directors
I R Pearson 30,167 � � 30,167 20,000 � �
D A Hurst-Brown 26,000 � � 26,000 20,000 � �

TOTAL 467,367 � 3,657 471,024 445,615 22,740 21,656

Directors� Share Incentives
The following table sets out the share related incentives the Directors have in the shares of Imagination Technologies Group plc.

Balance at Lapsed Exercised Granted Balance at Date from 
1st April during the during the during the 31st March Exercise which first 

Grant Date 2006 year year year 2007 Price exercisable Expiry date

G S Shingles Jul-1996 599,590 (599,590) � � 0 98.5p Jul-1999 Jun-2006
Aug-1998 *350,000 � � � *350,000 64p Aug-2000 Aug-2008
Sep-2006 � � **6,435 6,435 60.5p Nov-2009 May-2010

H Yassaie Aug-1998 1,000,000 � � � 1,000,000 64p Aug-2001 Aug-2008
Aug-1998 *500,000 � � � *500,000 64p Aug-2000 Aug-2008
Aug-2001 *1,000,000 � � � *1,000,000 64p Aug-2003 Aug-2011
Sep-2006 � � � **6,435 6,435 60.5p Nov-2009 May-2010
Sep-2006 � � � ***130,000 130,000 � Sep-2009 Sep-2016

T Selby Jul-1996 268,000 (268,000) � � 0 91p Jul-1999 Jul-2006
Aug-1998 *400,000 � � *400,000 64p Aug-2000 Aug-2008
Aug-2001 *300,000 � � *300,000 64p Aug-2003 Aug-2011
Sep-2006 � � � **6,435 6,435 60.5p Nov-2009 May-2010
Sep-2006 � � � ***70,000 70,000 � Sep-2009 Sep-2016

TOTAL 4,417,590 (867,590) � 219,305 3,769,305
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The market price of the shares at 31st March 2007 was 127.25p and the range during the financial year was 49p to 141p.
Options marked * have been issued under the Long Term Incentive Plan.
Options marked ** have been issued under the Savings Related Share Option Scheme.
The Awards marked *** have been issued under the Restricted Share Plan.
G S Shingles�s share option over 599,590 shares at 98.5p expired in June 2006 and likewise T Selby�s share option over 268,000 shares at
91p expired in July 2006.
As at 24th May 2007 there had been no changes in the balance of options outstanding.
Executive Directors � Share option performance conditions:
The option granted to H Yassaie in August 1998 over 1,000,000 shares is exercisable if the share price growth at the date of exercise is at
least 20% greater than the grant price. 
Options issued under the Long Term Incentive Plan are exercisable if the share price growth is at least greater than an annual compound
increase of 15% per annum in the share price over the four year period following the date of grant and there has been an improvement in
the underlying financial performance of the Company in the opinion of the Remuneration Committee.
The Restricted Share Plan Awards have two performance conditions:
1. FTSE All Share Index. The first 50% of the Award is subject to the performance of Company�s shares. It is dependent on the percentage
growth in the value of a share in the Company compared to the percentage growth of the FTSE All Share Index over the three year period
commencing on the date of grant of the Award. If the performance of a share in the Company against the Index is 150% then all 50% of
the Award will vest, if the performance of a share in the Company against the Index is between 125% and 150% of the Index then pro-rata
on a straight line basis between 25% and 50% will vest, and if the performance of a share in the Company against the Index is below 125%
of the Index then there is no Award; and 
2. Royalty Income. The second and remaining 50% of the Award will be calculated by reference to the royalty income generated by the
Group. 25% of the Award will vest if the average annual increase in royalty income over the three year period commencing on 1st April
2006 (the �Performance Period�) exceeds 30%. 50% of the Award will vest if the average annual increase in royalty income over the
Performance Period equals or exceeds 50%. The Award will vest pro-rata on a straight-line basis between 25% and 50% for average annual
growth in royalty income between 30% and 50%. There will be no vesting in respect of this part of the Award if the average annual increase
in royalty income is less than 30%.
Options issued under the Savings Related Share Option Scheme do not have any performance targets.

Directors� Interests
Interests of the Directors in the shares of Imagination Technologies Group plc were as follows:

Ordinary shares of 10p beneficially owned at 31st March 2007 2006

G S Shingles 230,698 230,698
H Yassaie 450,767 450,767
T Selby 86,767 104,767
I R Pearson 39,722 39,722
D A Hurst-Brown 100,000 100,000

As at 24th May 2007 there had been no changes in the above interests. 

This report was approved by the Board on 24th May 2007 and was signed on its behalf by:

I R Pearson
Chairman of the Remuneration Committee
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Statement of Directors� Responsibilities in Respect of the 
Annual Report and the Financial Statements

The Directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report and the group and parent company financial statements, in accordance with
applicable law and regulations.  
Company law requires the Directors to prepare group and parent company financial statements for each financial year. Under that law the
Directors are required to prepare the group financial statements in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the EU and applicable law and have
elected to prepare the parent company financial statements in accordance with UK Accounting Standards and applicable law (UK Generally
Accepted Accounting Practice).
The group financial statements are required by law and IFRSs as adopted by the EU to present fairly the financial position and performance
of the group; the Companies Act 1985 provides in relation to such financial statements that references in the relevant part of that Act to
financial statements giving a true and fair view are references to their achieving a fair presentation.  
The parent company financial statements are required by law to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the parent company.  
In preparing each of the group and parent company financial statements, the Directors are required to: 
� select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;
� make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;
� for the group financial statements, state whether they have been prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the EU;  
� for the parent company financial statements, state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any

material departures disclosed and explained in the parent company financial statements; and  
� prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the group and the parent company

will continue in business. 
The Directors are responsible for keeping proper accounting records that disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position
of the parent company and enable them to ensure that its financial statements comply with the Companies Act 1985. They have general
responsibility for taking such steps as are reasonably open to them to safeguard the assets of the group and to prevent and detect fraud and
other irregularities.  
Under applicable law and regulations, the Directors are also responsible for preparing a Directors� Report, Directors� Remuneration Report
and Corporate Governance Statement that comply with that law and those regulations.  
The Directors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial information included on the company�s
website. Legislation in the UK governing the preparation and dissemination of financial statements may differ from legislation in other
jurisdictions.
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Independent auditors� report to the members of 
Imagination Technologies Group plc

We have audited the group and parent company financial statements (the ��financial statements��) of Imagination Technologies Group plc for
the year ended 31st March 2007 which comprise the Consolidated Income Statement, the Consolidated and Parent Company Balance
Sheets, the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement, the Consolidated Statement of Recognised Income and Expense and the related notes. These
financial statements have been prepared under the accounting policies set out therein. We have also audited the information in the
Directors� Remuneration Report that is described as having been audited.  
This report is made solely to the company�s members, as a body, in accordance with section 235 of the Companies Act 1985. Our audit
work has been undertaken so that we might state to the company�s members those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor�s
report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the
company and the company�s members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

Respective Responsibilities of Directors and Auditors
The Directors� responsibilities for preparing the Annual Report and the group financial statements in accordance with applicable law and
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the EU, and for preparing the parent company financial statements and the
Directors� Remuneration Report in accordance with applicable law and UK Accounting Standards (UK Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice) are set out in the Statement of Directors� Responsibilities on page 33.
Our responsibility is to audit the financial statements and the part of the Directors� Remuneration Report to be audited in accordance with
relevant legal and regulatory requirements and International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland).
We report to you our opinion as to whether the financial statements give a true and fair view and whether the financial statements and the
part of the Directors� Remuneration Report to be audited have been properly prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 1985 and, as
regards the group financial statements, Article 4 of the IAS Regulation. We also report to you whether in our opinion the information given
in the Directors� Report is consistent with the financial statements. The information given in the Directors� Report includes that specific
information presented in the Chief Executive�s Review that is cross referenced from the Principal Activities and Business Review section of the
Directors� Report. 
In addition we report to you if, in our opinion, the company has not kept proper accounting records, if we have not received all the
information and explanations we require for our audit, or if information specified by law regarding directors� remuneration and other
transactions is not disclosed.
We review whether the Corporate Governance Statement reflects the company�s compliance with the nine provisions of the 2003 Combined
Code specified for our review by the Listing Rules of the Financial Services Authority, and we report if it does not. We are not required to
consider whether the Board�s statements on internal control cover all risks and controls, or form an opinion on the effectiveness of the
group�s corporate governance procedures or its risk and control procedures.
We read the other information contained in the Annual Report and consider whether it is consistent with the audited financial statements.
We consider the implications for our report if we become aware of any apparent misstatements or material inconsistencies with the financial
statements. Our responsibilities do not extend to any other information.

Basis of Audit Opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) issued by the Auditing Practices Board. An
audit includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements and the part of
the Directors� Remuneration Report to be audited. It also includes an assessment of the significant estimates and judgements made by the
Directors in the preparation of the financial statements, and of whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the group�s and
company�s circumstances, consistently applied and adequately disclosed. 
We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all the information and explanations which we considered necessary in order to
provide us with sufficient evidence to give reasonable assurance that the financial statements and the part of the Directors� Remuneration
Report to be audited are free from material misstatement, whether caused by fraud or other irregularity or error. In forming our opinion we
also evaluated the overall adequacy of the presentation of information in the financial statements and the part of the Directors�
Remuneration Report to be audited. 

Opinion
In our opinion:
� the group financial statements give a true and fair view, in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the EU, of the state of the group�s affairs

as at 31st March 2007 and of its loss for the year then ended; 
� the group financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 1985 and Article 4 of the IAS regulation; 
� the parent company financial statements give a true and fair view, in accordance with UK Generally Accepted Accounting Practice, of the

state of the parent company�s affairs as at 31st March 2007; 
� the parent company financial statements and the part of the Directors� Remuneration Report to be audited have been properly prepared

in accordance with the Companies Act 1985; and 
� the information given in the Directors� Report is consistent with the financial statements. 

KPMG Audit Plc
Chartered Accountants

Registered Auditor
8 Salisbury Square

London
EC4Y 8BB 

24th May 2007
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Consolidated Income Statement

2007 2006
Year to 31st March Notes £�000 £�000

Revenue 2 48,062 35,273

Cost of sales (20,913) (16,231)

Gross profit 27,149 19,042

Research and development expenses (23,419) (20,649)
Sales and administrative expenses (6,250) (5,549)

Total operating expenses (29,669) (26,198)

Operating loss (2,520) (7,156)

Financial income 5 259 329
Financial expenses 6 (40) (43)

Net financing income 219 286

Loss before taxation (2,301) (6,870)

Taxation 7 (244) (490)

Loss after taxation attributable to equity holders of the parent (2,545) (7,360)

Loss per share             Basic and diluted 8 (1.2p) (3.7p)

During this and the previous year all results arise from continuing operations.

Consolidated Statement of Recognised Income and Expense

2007 2006
Year to 31st March £�000 £�000

Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations (16) 2
Change in fair value of available for sale investment 872 �

Total income and expense recognised directly in equity 856 2
Loss for the year (2,545) (7,360)

Total recognised income and expense for the year
attributable to equity holders of the parent (1,689) (7,358)
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Consolidated Balance Sheet 

As at 31st March
2007 2006

Notes £�000 £�000

Non-current assets
Intangible assets 9 4,872 4,675
Property, plant and equipment 10 3,791 3,712
Investments 11 7,027 6,155

15,690 14,542
Current assets
Inventories 12 3,636 3,445
Trade and other receivables 13 11,260 9,254
Cash and cash equivalents 14 10,818 6,384

25,714 19,083
Current liabilities
Bank overdraft 14 (1,259) �
Current portion of long term borrowings 16 (29) (29)
Trade and other payables 15 (7,495) (6,867)

Net current assets 16,931 12,187

Non-current liabilities
Other interest bearing loans and borrowings 16 (529) (557)

Net assets 32,092 26,172

Equity
Called up share capital 17 21,748 20,706
Share premium account 18 50,321 44,472
Other capital reserve 18 593 319
Warrant reserve 18 830 1,104
Merger reserve 18 2,402 2,402
Revaluation reserve 18 6,414 5,542
Translation reserve 18 (12) 4
Retained earnings 18 (50,204) (48,377)

Total equity 18 32,092 26,172

These financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on 24th May, 2007 and were signed on its behalf by:

G S Shingles
Director
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

2007 2006
£�000 £�000

Cash flows from operating activities
Loss before tax (2,301) (6,870)
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortisation 1,622 1,757
Net financing income (219) (286)
Loss on sale of property, plant & equipment 15 5
Share-based remuneration 718 327

Operating cash flows before movements in working capital (165) (5,067)

Increase in inventories (191) (1,113)
Increase in receivables (1,794) (1,993)
Increase/(decrease) in payables 619 (1,539)

Cash generated by operations (1,531) (9,712)

Interest paid (40) (43)
Taxes paid (447) (304)

Net cash flows from operating activities (2,018) (10,059)

Cash flows from investing activities
Interest received 250 260
Acquisition of intangible assets (683) (346)
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment (990) (1,216)
Proceeds on disposal of property, plant and equipment � 6

Net cash used in investing activities (1,423) (1,296)

Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from the issue of share capital 6,891 9,857
Repayment of borrowings (28) (31)

Net cash from financing activities 6,863 9,826

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 3,422 (1,529)
Effect of exchange rate fluctuation (247) 243
Cash and cash equivalents at the start of the period 6,384 7,670

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period 9,559 6,384
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Notes to the Financial Statements

1 Accounting Policies

General
Imagination Technologies Group plc is a company incorporated in the UK.
The group financial statements consolidate those of the Company and its subsidiaries (together referred to as the Group). The parent
company financial statements present information about the Company as a separate entity and not about its group.

Significant accounting policies

Statement of compliance
The group financial statements have been prepared and approved by the directors in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards as adopted by the EU (Adopted IFRSs). The Company has elected to prepare its parent company financial statements in
accordance with UK GAAP; these are presented on pages 54 to 55.

Basis of preparation
The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to all periods presented in these consolidated financial statements.
In these financial statements the following Adopted IFRSs are effective for the first time and comparatives have been restated accordingly:

IFRIC 6 �Liabilities arising from participation in specific markets � Waste electrical and electronic equipment�
The amendments to IAS 39 in relation to the fair value option and the consequential amendments to IAS 32 in relation to disclosures in
respect of financial assets and financial liabilities designated as fair value through profit or loss

The application of these Adopted IFRSs for the first time has not had a material effect on the financial statements.
Judgements made by the directors, in the application of these accounting policies that have significant effect on the financial statements and
estimates with a significant risk of material adjustment in the next year are discussed below under �Significant accounting judgements and
estimates�.
Measurement convention:
The financial statements are prepared on the historical cost basis except that the trade investment and derivatives have been stated at fair
value in accordance with IAS 39. Non-current assets are stated at the lower of previous carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell.

Basis of consolidation

Subsidiaries
Subsidiaries are those entities controlled by the Group. Control exists when the Group has the power, directly or indirectly, to govern the
financial and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities. In assessing control, potential voting rights that
presently are exercisable or convertible are taken into account. The financial statements of subsidiaries are included in the consolidated
financial statements from the date that control commences until the date that control ceases.

Revenue
Revenue comprises:
1 the value of licence fees, development income, maintenance and royalties from licence and development agreements;
2 revenues from the sale of products to support technology licensees; and
3 revenues from the sale of systems products utilising the Group�s technology to third parties.
Revenue is recognised to the extent that the Group has obtained the right to consideration through its performance.
Revenue from licences is recognised on delivery to the customer. Revenue on licence agreements for products which are either not finished
or which need to be modified to meet specific customer requirements is recognised on a percentage-to-completion basis over the period
from starting development of the product to delivery. The percentage-to-completion is measured by monitoring progress compared with the
total estimated project requirement. Progress is measured by an assessment of performance against key development milestones.
Revenue on development work is recognised on a percentage-to-completion basis over the period from the start of the development to
delivery. Development work is normally invoiced as milestones are achieved.
Where invoicing milestones on licence or development arrangements are such that the proportion of work performed is greater than the
proportion of the total contract value which has been invoiced, the Group evaluates whether it has obtained, through its performance to
date, the right to the uninvoiced consideration and therefore whether revenue should be recognised. In particular it considers whether there
is sufficient certainty that the invoice will be raised in the expected timeframe, that the customer considers that the Group�s contractual
obligations have been, or will be, fulfilled and that only those costs budgeted to be incurred will be incurred. Where the Group considers
that there is insufficient evidence that it has the right to consideration, taking into account these criteria, revenue is not recognised until
there is sufficient evidence that the Group has obtained the right to consideration for its performance under such arrangements.
Revenue for maintenance is recognised on a straight-line basis over the period for which maintenance is contractually agreed with the
licensee.
The excess of licence fees, development income and maintenance invoiced over revenue recognised is recorded as deferred income.
Royalty revenues are earned on the sale by licensees of products containing the Group�s technology. Revenues are recognised as they are
earned to the extent that the Group has sufficient evidence of sales of products containing the Group�s technology by licensees.
Revenues from the sale of products to support technology licensees and systems products utilising the Group�s technology to third parties
are recognised upon delivery and are accounted for net of VAT and returns.
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Research and development costs
Costs of basic and applied research are written off in the period in which they are incurred.
Development expenditure is capitalised where it relates to a specific project where technical feasibility has been established, adequate
technical, financial and other resources exist to complete the project, the expenditure attributable to the project can be measured reliably
and overall project profitability is reasonably certain. In this case, it is recognised as an intangible asset and amortised over its useful
economic life. All other development expenditure is recognised as an expense in the period in which it is incurred.
Development costs incurred after the establishment of technological feasibility and overall project profitability have not been significant and,
therefore, no costs have been capitalised to date.

Operating leases
Rental charges in respect of operating leases are charged to the income statement on a straight line basis over the life of the lease.

Employee benefits
The Group contributes to a defined contribution pension plan. Payments are charged to the income statement in the period to which they
relate.

Share-based payment transactions
The share option programmes and the Restricted Share Plan (together �Share Incentives�) allow Group employees to acquire shares of the
company. The fair value of Share Incentives is recognised as an expense with a corresponding increase in equity. The fair value is measured at
grant date and spread over the period during which the employee becomes unconditionally entitled to the Share Incentives. The fair value of
the Share Incentives granted is measured using the Black-Scholes model. The amount recognised as an expense is adjusted to reflect the
actual number of Share Incentives that vest except where forfeiture is due only to share prices not achieving the threshold for vesting.
For cash bonuses which are calculated by reference to the value of shares, the fair value of these bonuses is recognised as an expense, with a
corresponding increase in liabilities over the period in which the employees become unconditionally entitled to payment. The liability is
remeasured at each reporting date and at settlement date. Any changes in the fair value of the liability are recognised as personnel expense
in profit or loss.

Taxation
Tax on the profit or loss for the year comprises current and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the income statement except to the extent that
it relates to items recognised directly in equity, in which case it is recognised in equity. 
Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the balance
sheet date, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years. 
Deferred tax is provided using the balance sheet liability method on any temporary differences between the carrying amounts for financial
reporting purposes and those for taxation purposes. The amount of deferred tax provided is based on the expected manner of realisation or
settlement of the carrying amount of assets and liabilities using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date. 
A deferred tax asset is recognised only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which the asset can
be utilised.

Foreign exchange
Transactions in foreign currencies are translated at the rates of exchange ruling at the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at rates of exchange ruling at the balance sheet date. Exchange gains and losses
on settled transactions and monetary items are taken to the income statement.
On consolidation, results of foreign subsidiary undertakings are translated at the average rates of exchange for the year. The assets and
liabilities are translated at rates ruling at the balance sheet date. Exchange differences arising from the retranslation of the opening net
investments in overseas subsidiary undertakings and between the results for the year translated at average and closing rates are disclosed as
movements in the translation reserve within equity. This reserve was set to zero at 1st April 2004.

Segmented reporting
A segment is a distinguishable component of the Group that is engaged either in providing products or services (business segment) or in
providing products or services within a particular economic environment (geographical segment) which is subject to risks and rewards that
are different from those of other segments.

Intangible assets 
Software, trademarks and patents are capitalised as intangible assets at cost of acquisition and amortised on a straight line basis over their
estimated useful economic lives, between 3 and 5 years. Intangible assets acquired as part of a business combination are stated in the
balance sheet at their fair value at the date of acquisition and amortised over their estimated useful economic lives.

Trade investment
Consistent with the requirements of IAS 39, the trade investment is classed as available for sale and is stated on the balance sheet at fair
value, with any resultant gain or loss being recognised directly in equity (in the revaluation reserve), except for impairment losses. When this
investment is derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised directly in equity is recognised in profit or loss.
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Goodwill
Purchased goodwill (representing the excess of the fair value of the consideration and associated costs over the net fair value of the
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities acquired) arising on consolidation in respect of acquisitions is capitalised. Goodwill is
recognised as an intangible asset and reviewed for impairment at least annually. Any impairment is recognised immediately in the income
statement and may not be subsequently reversed.
On disposal of a subsidiary or business, the attributable goodwill is included in the determination of the profit or loss on disposal.
Goodwill is stated on the balance sheet at cost less impairment.
Business combinations that took place prior to 1st April 2004 have not been re-stated.

Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.
Property, plant and equipment are depreciated to write down their cost using the straight line method to their estimated residual values over
the period of their estimated useful economic lives. Periodic reviews are made of estimated remaining useful economic lives and residual
values, and the depreciation rates applied are:

Freehold land No depreciation
Freehold buildings 2 per cent on cost
Leasehold improvements Equally over the period of the lease
Plant and equipment 10 per cent to 33 per cent on cost
Motor vehicles 25 per cent on cost

Impairment 
Assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to amortisation and are tested annually for impairment. Assets that are subject to
amortisation or depreciation are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount
may not be recoverable. If any such condition exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent, if
any, of the impairment loss. Where the asset does not generate cash flows that are independent from other assets, estimates are made of
the cashflows of the cash generating unit to which the asset belongs. 
Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value, less costs to sell, and value in use. In assessing value in use, estimated future cashflows are
discounted to their present value using a discount rate appropriate to the specific asset or cash generating unit. 
If the recoverable amount of an asset or cash generating unit is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying value of the asset
or cash generating unit is reduced to its recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognised immediately in the income statement. 
In respect of assets other than goodwill, an impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount. An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset�s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount
that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss had been recognised. Impairment losses in
respect of goodwill are not reversed.

Inventories
Inventory is valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value. The cost of inventory is calculated using the standard costing method.
Finished goods include direct costs and attributable overheads based on the normal level of activity.

Cash and equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprises cash balances and call deposits with maturity of less than or equal to three months. Bank overdrafts
that are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Group�s cash management are included as a component of cash and cash
equivalents for the purpose only of the statement of cash flows. 

Loans and receivables
Loans and receivables are initially measured at fair value plus any directly attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition
loans and receivables are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any impairment losses.

Convertible loan stock
Convertible loan stock was initially measured at fair value plus any directly attributable transaction costs. The conversion options are
derivatives under IAS 39 and therefore subsequent to initial recognition, these elements are carried at fair value.
Subsequent to initial recognition, the underlying loan stock element of the instrument is measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest rate method.

Long Term Borrowing
Long term borrowings are recognised initially at fair value less attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, long term
borrowings are stated at amortised cost with any difference between cost and redemption value being recognised in the income statement
over the period of the borrowings on an effective interest basis.
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Significant accounting judgements and estimates
In applying the Group�s accounting policies described above, management has made the following judgements and estimates that have a
significant impact on the amounts recognised in the financial statements:

Revenue Recognition
The Group has made judgements on the percentage-to-completion for licensing and development work which affect the amount of revenue
recognised in the period.

Share based payments
A charge of £718,000 has been expensed for Shared based incentives. In determining the appropriate expense, the Group has made judgements
on the likelihood that internal performance targets will be achieved and on the number of employees that will be employed on vesting. 

Taxation
The Group has an unrecognised deferred tax asset of £14,604,000. A deferred tax asset is recognised only to the extent that it is probable
that sufficient taxable profit will be available to utilise the temporary difference. The Group has made judgements on the likelihood that
future taxable profit will utilise these tax losses.

Impairment of Goodwill
The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at a minimum on an annual basis. This requires an estimation of the value in use of the
cash generating units to which the goodwill relates. Estimating the value in use requires the Group to make an estimate of the expected
future cash flows from the cash generating unit that holds the goodwill at a determined discount rate to calculate the present value of those
cash flows. Note 9 sets out further details.

Investments
The Group has stated the trade investment at fair value. Estimating the fair value requires the Group to reference the last funding round for
Frontier Silicon. Accordingly, the investment in Frontier Silicon, which is not a listed company, was revalued during the year to £7,027,000.

Adopted IFRS not yet applied
The following Adopted IFRSs were available for early application but have not been applied by the Group in these financial statements. Their
adoption is not expected to have a material affect on the financial statements unless otherwise indicated:

IFRS 7 �Financial instruments: Disclosure� applicable for years commencing on or after 1st January 2007 
The application of IFRS 7 in current year would not have affected the balance sheets or income statement but would have resulted in
significant changes to disclosures provided in respect of financial instruments. The Group plans to adopt it for the year ended 31st March
2008.
IFRIC 10 �Interim Financial Reporting and Impairment� (applicable for the years commencing on or after 1st November 2006). 
The adoption of IFRIC 10 in the current year would not have had a material effect on the balance sheet or income statement. The Group
plans to adopt it for the year ended 31st March 2008.
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2  Segmented Reporting
The Group operates as two business segments; the Technology business, comprising licensing and royalty revenues, and the PURE Digital
business. The segment information in respect of these businesses is presented below. 

Primary reporting format - business segments

2007 2006
£�000 £�000

Revenue
Technology business 21,749 14,624
PURE Digital business 26,313 20,649

48,062 35,273

Operating (loss)/profit
Technology business (4,369) (8,545)
PURE Digital business 1,849 1,389

(2,520) (7,156)
Total assets
Technology business 22,694 20,610
PURE Digital business 7,892 6,631
Unallocated assets 10,818 6,384

41,404 33,625

Total liabilities
Technology business 4,259 4,450
PURE Digital business 3,265 2,446
Unallocated liabilities 1,788 557

9,312 7,453

Net asset analysis
Technology business 18,435 16,160
PURE Digital business 4,627 4,185
Unallocated assets and liabilities 9,030 5,827

32,092 26,172

Other segment items
Capital expenditure Technology business 1,744 1,168

PURE Digital business 182 291

1,926 1,459

Depreciation and amortisation Technology business 1,491 1,554
PURE Digital business 131 203

1,622 1,757

Secondary format � geographical segments
Revenue is segmented by geographical area of sales as follows

2007 2006
£�000 £�000

United Kingdom and Europe 30,267 23,491
Asia 7,551 5,561
North America 8,719 4,978
Rest of the world 1,525 1,243

48,062 35,273

All revenue originated from United Kingdom and Europe.
The operating loss, net assets and capital expenditure of the Group materially relate to the United Kingdom and Europe.
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3  Expenses and Auditors� Remuneration

2007 2006
£�000 £�000

Operating loss is stated after charging:
Depreciation and amortisation of owned property, plant and equipment and intangible assets 1,622 1,757
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment 15 5
Foreign exchange loss 394 194
Operating lease rentals:
Hire of plant and machinery 1 2
Other operating leases 1,361 1,417

Auditors� remuneration
Audit of these financial statements 20 20
Amount received by auditors and their accociates in respect of: 
Audit of financial statements of subsidiaries persuant to legislation 37 33

57 53

Amounts paid to the Company�s auditor in respect of services to the Company, other than the audit of the Company�s financial statements,
have not been disclosed as the information is required instead to be disclosed on a consolidated basis.

4  Employees

The average number of persons employed by the Group (including Directors) was: 2007 2006

Research and Development 274 251
Production 19 18
Administration 38 37
Sales and Marketing 35 30

366 336

The aggregate payroll costs of these persons were: £�000 £�000
Wages and salaries 14,282 13,239
Social security costs 1,644 1,502
Other pension costs 722 683
Share based payment 718 327

17,366 15,751

Complete information on the remuneration options and shares held by Directors is set out in the Remuneration Report on pages 30-32.

5  Financial Income

2007 2006
£�000 £�000

Interest receivable and similar income 259 329

6  Financial Expenses

2007 2006
£�000 £�000

Loan repayable after five years 39 40
Bank overdraft repayable within five years 1 3

40 43
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7  Taxation

2007 2006
£�000 £�000

Current tax expense
Foreign tax 244 490

244 490

Reconciliation of the notional tax charge at UK standard rate to the actual tax charge:
Loss before taxation (2,301) (6,870)
Notional tax charge at UK standard rate of 30% (2006: 30%) (690) (2,061)

Non-deductible expenses (25) 177
Origination and reversal of temporary differences (122) (64)
Transfer to unrecognised tax asset 837 1,948
Withholding tax 244 490

244 490

2007 2006
£�000 £�000

Unrecognised deferred tax assets
Deductible temporary differences 1,585 715
Tax losses 10,341 9,425

11,926 10,140

As at 31st March 2007, and 31st March 2006, there is an unrecognised deferred tax asset due to the trading losses available and deductible
temporary differences
In addition to the above, as at 31st March 2007 there is a further unrecognized deferred tax asset of £2,678,000 (2006: £3,222,000) in the
Group�s U.S. subsidiary, however, it is not probable that the entity will have sufficient taxable profits in the near future to utilize these tax
losses. These tax losses expire progressively over the next 18 years.

8  Loss Per Share

2007 2006
£�000 £�000

Loss attributable to shareholders (2,545) (7,360)

2007 2006
Shares Shares 

000�s 000�s

Weighted average number of shares in issue 211,123 200,755

Outstanding share options and awards under the Restricted Share Plan as discussed in note 23 are potentially dilutive ordinary shares in
issue at 31st March 2007, however these are anti-dilutive for the period.

2007 2006

Loss per share             Basic and diluted (1.2p) (3.7p)
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9  Intangible Assets

Software, Patents 
Goodwill and Trademarks Total

£�000 £�000 £�000

Cost
At 1st April 2005 7,129 6,886 14,015
Additions � 383 383

At 31st March 2006 7,129 7,269 14,398

At 1st April 2006 7,129 7,269 14,398
Additions � 746 746

At 31st March 2007 7,129 8,015 15,144

Amortisation
At 1st April 2005 3,517 5,549 9,066
Charge for the year � 657 657

At 31st March 2006 3,517 6,206 9,723

At 1st April 2006 3,517 6,206 9,723
Charge for the year � 549 549

At 31st March 2007 3,517 6,755 10,272

Net book value at 1st April 2005 3,612 1,337 4,949
Net book value at 31st March 2006 3,612 1,063 4,675
Net book value at 31st March 2007 3,612 1,260 4,872

Goodwill was acquired through acquisitions and relates to the Technology business which is considered to be a single cash generating unit.
During the year the Group tested its balance of goodwill for impairment in accordance with IAS 36, �Impairment of assets�. The test was
based on a calculation of the recoverable amount based on value in use, using projected cash flows for the Technology business. 
The key assumptions in the value in use calculations were:
Period over which the directors have projected cashflows � a five year forecast period is used with an assumed terminal growth rate after
2012 of 3% per annum.
Forecast revenue growth � the revenue projections are consistent with those used by the Group for financial planning purposes
Forecast operating margins � the operating margin projections are consistent with those used by the Group for financial planning purposes
Discount rate � future cash flows are discounted in line with the estimated average cost of capital for the Technology business of 15% pre-
tax.
Whilst it is conceivable that a key assumption in the calculation could change, the Directors believe that no reasonably foreseeable changes
to key assumptions would result in an impairment of goodwill, such is the margin by which the estimated fair value exceeds the carrying
value.
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10 Property, Plant and Equipment

Freehold Land Leasehold Plant and Motor
and Buildings improvements equipment Vehicles Total

£�000 £�000 £�000 £�000 £�000

Cost
At 1st April, 2005 1,106 1,016 7,255 5 9,382
Additions 5 396 675 � 1,076
Disposals � � (424) (5) (429)

At 31st March, 2006 1,111 1,412 7,506 � 10,029

At 1st April, 2006 1,111 1,412 7,506 � 10,029
Additions � 160 1,020 � 1,180
Disposals � � (190) � (190)

At 31st March, 2007 1,111 1,572 8,336 � 11,019

Depreciation
At 1st April, 2005 16 495 5,120 4 5,635
Charge for the year 19 165 915 1 1,100
Disposals � � (413) (5) (418)

At 31st March, 2006 35 660 5,622 � 6,317

At 1st April, 2006 35 660 5,622 � 6,317
Charge for the year 19 211 843 � 1,073
Disposals � � (162) � (162)

At 31st March, 2007 54 871 6,303 � 7,228

Net book value at 1st April, 2005 1,090 521 2,135 1 3,747
Net book value at 31st March, 2006 1,076 752 1,884 � 3,712
Net book value at 31st March, 2007 1,057 701 2,033 � 3,791

2007 2006
£�000 £�000

The net book value of freehold land and buildings comprises:
Land 165 165
Buildings 892 911

1,057 1,076
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11 Investment

2007 2006
£�000 £�000

Trade investment classified as available for sale 7,027 6,155

The investment relates to the Group�s holding in Frontier Silicon, a company which is not listed. The holding was revalued during the year to
£7,027,000, representing an increase of £872,000. The holding is valued by reference to the last funding round for Frontier Silicon, which
was carried out in January 2007. 
Details of the Group�s subsidiary undertakings which are involved in the licensing of the design of multimedia technology and the sale of
multimedia products, are as follows:

Country of incorporation Percentage of issued
and of operation Type of shares share capital held

Name of subsidiary undertaking
Imagination Technologies Limited UK Ordinary 100%
PowerVR Technologies Limited* UK Ordinary 100%
Metagence Technologies Limited* UK Ordinary **100%
Ensigma Technologies Limited* UK Ordinary 100%
VideoLogic Systems Limited* UK Ordinary 100%
Cross Products Limited* UK Ordinary 100%
PURE Digital Limited* UK Ordinary **100%
VideoLogic GmbH Germany Ordinary **100%
Imagination Technologies Inc USA Ordinary **100%
Imagination Technologies KK Japan Ordinary 100%
Imagination Technologies India Private Limited India Ordinary **100%

All of the above companies are included in the Group financial statements.     *non-trading     **indirect holding

12 Inventories

2007 2006
£�000 £�000

Raw materials and components 850 2,047
Finished goods 2,786 1,398

3,636 3,445

Provisions of £478,000 (2006: £256,000) recognised in operating expenses were made against inventories. During the year, £398,000
(2006: £66,000) of the provision against inventories was utilised; £361,000 (2006: nil) for the write-down of inventories to net relisable
value and £37,000 (2006: £66,000) for the write off of inventories.
Raw materials, consumables and changes in finished goods and work in progress recognised as cost of sales in the year amounted to
£19,139,000 (2006: £14,966,000). 

13 Trade and Other Receivables

2007 2006
£�000 £�000

Trade receivables 6,203 5,165
Prepayments and accrued income 3,107 2,942
Loans and receivables 795 795
Convertible loan stock 918 �
Other receivables 237 352

11,260 9,254

Provisions for impairment of £40,000 (2006: £40,000) recognised in operating expenses were made against receivables. £15,000 (2006:
£14,000) of provisions were utilised by writing down the gross value of receivables. 
Loans and receivables comprise a loan note with Frontier Silicon, which is non-interest bearing, and convertible loan stock comprises a
convertible loan note with Future Waves which bears interest at 10% and which is convertible into shares in Future Waves upon specific
events occurring. (See note 21 for further details)

Imagination Technologies Group plc
Annual Report 2007 47



14 Cash and Cash Equivalents

2007 2006
£�000 £�000

Cash at bank - short term deposits 6,882 5,355
Cash at bank - current account 3,936 1,029

Cash and cash equivalents as per Consolidated Balance Sheet 10,818 6,384
Bank overdraft (1,259) �

Cash and cash equivalents as per Consolidated Cash Flow Statement 9,559 6,384

The overdraft at March 2007 resulted from a short term timing difference on the clearance of transactions through one of the Group�s bank
accounts.

15 Trade and Other Payables

2007 2006
£�000 £�000

Trade payables 3,399 3,675
Other payables including tax and social security 817 500
Accruals and deferred income 3,279 2,692

7,495 6,867

16 Long Term Borrowings

2007 2006
£�000 £�000

Current Liabilities
Current portion of long term borrowings 29 29

Non-current liabilities
Long term borrowings 529 557

558 586

Borrowings to be repaid within 1 year 29 29
Borrowings to be repaid between 1 and 5 years 135 140
Borrowings to be repaid over 5 years 394 417

558 586

The loan is secured on a freehold building. The loan repayments are fixed. The unexpired term of the loan is 12 years and the interest rate on
the loan floats at 2.0% above base rate. The Group considers the requirements for Long Term Borrowings by assessing the future cash flows
of the business.

17 Called Up Share Capital

Allotted, called up
Authorised and fully paid

Ordinary shares of 10p each No. £�000 No. £�000

At 1st April 2006 250,000,000 25,000 207,055,414 20,706
Issued during year � � 10,421,620 1,042

At 31st March 2007 250,000,000 25,000 217,477,034 21,748

6,000,000 ordinary shares were issued fully paid on 2nd October 2006 to Intel pursuant to a placement.
4,421,620 (2006: 3,008,972) ordinary shares were issued fully paid during the course of the year pursuant to the terms of various Employee
Share Option Schemes and the exercise of warrants.
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18 Capital and Reserves

Share Share Other Capital Warrant Merger Revaluation Translation Retained
Capital Premium Reserve Reserve Reserve Reserve Reserve Earnings Total

£�000 £�000 £�000 £�000 £�000 £�000 £�000 £�000 £�000

As at 1st April 2005 18,905 36,415 313 1,111 2,402 5,542 2 (41,344) 23,346
Total recognised income � � � � � � 2 (7,360) (7,358)
and expense
Share-based remuneration � � � � � � � 327 327
Acquisition consideration � � 6 (7) � � � � (1)
Issue of new shares 1,801 8,057 � � � � � � 9,858

At 31st March 2006 20,706 44,472 319 1,104 2,402 5,542 4 (48,377) 26,172

As at 1st April 2006 20,706 44,472 319 1,104 2,402 5,542 4 (48,377) 26,172
Total recognised income � � � � � 872 (16) (2,545) (1,689)
and expense
Share-based remuneration � � � � � � � 718 718
Acquisition consideration � � 274 (274) � � � � �
Issue of new shares 1,042 5,849 � � � � � � 6,891

At 31st March 2007 21,748 50,321 593 830 2,402 6,414 (12) (50,204) 32,092

The movement on the Share Premium reserve in the year arises from the issue of:
i)  6,000,000 ordinary shares fully paid issued to Intel pursuant to a placement. The market price of the shares immediately prior to the

placement was 88p. The consideration for the shares was £5,280,000.
ii)  4,421,620 ordinary shares fully paid pursuant to the terms of various Employee Share Option Schemes and the exercise of warrants.

The consideration for the shares was £1,611,170.
The reserves movement in the year on the Other Capital Reserve and Warrant Reserve arise from the exercise of 61,240 warrants which were
issued in respect of the acquisition of Ensigma Limited. 
The balance on the Other Capital Reserve reflects the value of warrants issued in respect of the acquisition of Ensigma Limited. The balance
on the Warrant Reserve reflects the value of warrants outstanding in respect of the acquisition of Ensigma Limited. The valuation of the
warrants for both reserves reflects part consideration for the acquisition of Ensigma Limited in March 2000 and is by reference to the share
price at the date of acquisition. At 31st March 2007, there were 185,954 warrants (2006: 247,194) outstanding at a grant price of 10p.
The Merger Reserve arose in the group reconstruction in 1994 prior to its floatation.
The Revaluation Reserve comprises the cumulative net change in the fair value of the trade investment until the investment is derecognised.
The Translation Reserve reflects the exchange differences from retranslation of the opening net investments in overseas subsidiaries to closing
rate and translation of the results for the year from average rates to the closing rate.

19 Operating Leases
Non-cancellable operating lease rentals are payable as follows:

Land and buildings Other
2007 2006 2007 2006
£�000 £�000 £�000 £�000

Within one year 71 25 2 5
In two to five years 863 1,365 1,781 1,689
After five years 1,931 2,071 � �

2,865 3,461 1,783 1,694

20 Capital Commitments
At 31st March 2007, the Group had contracted for capital commitments of £66,000 (2006: £20,000). 



21 Financial Instruments

Use of financial instruments
The Group�s objectives in using financial instruments are the management of foreign exchange risk and the maximisation of returns from
financial assets.
The Group transacts licence and development agreements with customers and purchases of products for PURE Digital primarily in US dollars
and, therefore, the Group�s earnings are exposed to fluctuations in foreign exchange rates. The Group reviews its foreign exchange exposure
on a regular basis and, if there is a material exposure to exchange rate fluctuations and the Board considers it appropriate, the Group will
reduce the risk by currency hedging on net receivable/payable balances. Forward contracts are entered into with the objective of matching
their maturity with currency receipt. During the financial year and as at 31st March 2007 and 31st March 2006 there were no outstanding
currency contracts.
The Group�s earnings may be affected by changes in interest rates available on bank deposits. The Group aims to maximise returns from
funds held on deposit and uses mainly market deposits with major clearing banks accordingly.
Numerical disclosures are set out below.

Interest rate risk of financial instruments
In respect of income-earning financial assets and interest bearing financial liabilities, the following table indicates their average effective
interest rate at the reporting date and the periods in which they mature or, if earlier, reprice.

2007 2006
Effective 0 < 1 year 1-2 years Total Effective < 1 year 1-2 years Total

interest rate % £�000 £�000 £�000 interest rate % £�000 £�000 £�000

Cash and cash equivalents
Sterling 7,850 � 7,850 4,018 � 4,018
US Dollars 2,495 � 2,495 1,741 � 1,741
EU currencies 440 � 440 614 � 614
Yen 21 � 21 11 � 11
Rupees 12 � 12 � � �

10,818 � 10,818 6,384 � 6,384

Floating rate 2.0% 3,936 � 3,936 0.8% 1.028 � 1,028
Fixed rate 4.9% 6,882 � 6,882 4.2% 5,356 � 5,356

10,818 � 10,818 6,384 � 6,384

Other
Secured bank loan � Sterling 7.25% (558) � (558) 6.5% (586) � (586)
Bank overdraft � Sterling 0% (1,259) � (1,259) � � �
Convertible loan stock � US Dollars 10.0% � 918 918 � � �

9,001 918 9,919 5,798 � 5,798

The fixed rate cash deposits were placed with banks throughout the year and earned interest of between 2.3% and 5.1%. Floating rate cash
earns interest based on LIBID equivalents.
Short term receivables and payables are not interest bearing with the exception of the short term element of the long term loan. 
The long term loan, which is repayable over 12 years, incurred interest of between 6.5% and 7.25%. 
The convertible loan stock bears a fixed interest rate of 10%.

Credit Risk
The exposure to credit risk is mitigated by selling to a diverse range of customers. The Group has implemented policies that require
appropriate credit checks on potential customers prior to sales taking place. Counterparties for cash deposits are limited to institutions which
have a high credit rating.
At the balance sheet date there were no significant concentrations of credit risk. The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by the
carrying amount of each financial asset in the balance sheet.

Foreign currency risk
The Group has a number of overseas business operations and operates in a number of foreign currencies which give rise to transactional and
translational foreign exchange risk.  The most important foreign currency to the Group is the US dollar, followed by the Euro.
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Fair values of financial instruments

2007 2006
Carrying amount Carrying amount

and fair value and fair value
£�000 £�000

Financial assets:
Cash and cash equivalents 10,818 6,384
Available for sale investments 7,027 6,155
Other Receivables: Loan note 795 795

Convertible loan note 918 �

Financial Liabilities:
Bank overdraft (1,259) �
Bank Loan (558) (586)

Assumptions used in estimating the fair values of financial instruments reflected in the table above:

Cash, cash equivalents and bank overdraft
The fair value approximates to book value due to the short term maturity of these instruments.

Available for sale investments
The fair value is estimated by reference to the last funding round.

Loan Note
The fair value approximates to book value due to the short term maturity of this instrument.

Convertible loan note
The fair value approximates to the face value of the instrument as the instrument was issued immediately prior to the year end.

Long term borrowings
The fair value approximates to book value as this instrument is at a variable interest rate.

Financial instruments held for trading purposes 
The Group does not trade in financial instruments.

Convertible Loan Stock
The instrument is convertible into share capital of the counterparty under certain conditions.
The instrument may be converted, at the discretion of the holder, if the counterparty holds a fundraising event or undergoes a change of
control. If the fundraising exceeds a specified amount then conversion will occur. Conversion under the above conditions will be based on a
discount to the market price at the time of the fund raising or the change of control. The instrument may be converted at any time, at the
discretion of the holder, for a fixed number of shares.
If not converted, the instrument is redeemable on or after 31st December 2008 at the discretion of the holder.

22 Contingent Liabilities
The Group had no contingent liabilities at 31st March 2007 or on 31st March 2006.



23 Employee Benefits

Pension
The Group participates in a number of defined contribution pension plans in the UK. The assets of the schemes are held separately in
independently administered funds. There were no outstanding contributions at the balance sheet date.

Share-based payments

Share options
The following options have been granted under the Imagination Technologies Key Employee Share Option Schemes, Savings Related Share
Option Scheme and Long Term Incentive Plan and remain outstanding at 31st March 2007.

Outstanding Date from
at 31st Exercise which first Expiry

March 2007 price exercisable date

Year of Issue
1997 90,000 36p 2001 2008
1997 672,500 47p 2001 2008
1998 1,000,000 64p 2001 2008
1998 *1,588,750 64p 2000 2008
1999 3,273,350 53p 2001 2008
1999 368,000 195p 2002 2009
2000 946,500 212p 2003 2010
2000 *50,000 212p 2002 2010
2001 *1,300,000 64p 2004 2011
2001 1,553,611 46p 2004 2011
2002 1,358,250 19p 2005 2012
2003 1393,750 34.5p 2006 2013
2003 143,000 60p 2006 2013
2004 20,000 83p 2007 2014
2004 258,000 82p 2007 2014
2005 2,636,250 64.25p 2008 2014
2005 1,446,390 67.5p 2008 2014
2006 75,000 55p 2009 2016
2006 205,000 55p 2009 2016
2006 1,047,503 60.5p 2009 2010

Total 19,425,854

Options marked* have been granted under the Long Term Incentive Plan.

The number and weighted average exercise prices of share options are as follows:

Weighted average Number Weighted average Number
exercise price of options exercise price of options

2007 2007 2006 2006

Outstanding at the beginning of the period 61p 23,824,761 57p 25,917,195
Exercised during the period 67p (4,360,380) 25p (3,007,372)
Granted during the period 59p 1,336,124 67p 1,581,830
Lapsed during the period 83p (1,374,651) 42p (666,892)

Outstanding at the end of the period 65p 19,425,854 61p 23,824,761

Exercisable at the end of the period 67p 12,859,461 66p 16,170,906

The weighted average share price during the period was 85p (2006: 64p)
The options outstanding at the year end have an exercise price in the range of 19p to 212p and a weighted average contractual life of 4.8 years.
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Restricted Share Plan
The following awards have been granted under the Imagination Technologies Restricted Share Plan and remain outstanding at 31st March
2007.

Outstanding Date from
at 31st which first Expiry

March 2007 exercisable date

Year of Issue
2006 1,937,850 2009 2010

Total 1,937,850

The company has share option schemes, and a restricted shares plan scheme, details of which are contained in the Remuneration Report.
In accordance with IFRS 2, the fair value of services received in return for share options and restricted share plan awards granted to
employees, is measured by reference to the fair value of share options granted. In accordance with the transitional provisions in IFRS 1 and
IFRS 2, the recognition and measurement principles in IFRS 2 have not been applied to share option grants made prior to 7th November
2002 which had not vested by 1st April 2005. The estimate of the fair value of the services is measured based on the Black-Scholes formula,
a financial model used to calculate the fair value of options and awards under restricted share plans.
During the year ended 31st March 2007, the Group recognised an expense of £718,000 (2006: £327,000) in respect of outstanding share
awards and restricted share plan awards granted from 7th November 2002 onwards.
The assumptions used in the calculation of the fair value of options are set out below:

Date of share option grant Dec 2002 May 2003 Nov 2003 May 2004 Jun 2004 Jan 2005 Dec 2005

Share price at grant date (pence) 19 34.5 60 83 82 64.25 67.5
Exercise price (pence) 24-28 43-52 75-90 104-124 102-123 80-96 84-101
Expected volatility 60% 60% 60% 60% 60% 60% 60%
Risk free interest rate 4.4% 3.9% 4.9% 5.1% 5.2% 4.4% 4.4%
Time to maturity (years) 5 5 5 5 5 5 5
Fair value per option (pence) 9.4 17 30.2 42 41.5 31.8 34.4

The expected volatility is based on the historic volatility, adjusted for any expected changes to future volatility due to publicly available information.
The assumptions used in the calculation of the fair value of the restricted share plan awards are set out below:

Date of restricted share plan grant Sep 2006

Share price at grant date (pence) 70.75
Expected volatility 60%
Risk free interest rate 4.5%
Time to maturity (years) 3
Fair value per option (pence) 53

24 Related Parties

Identity of related parties
The Company has a related party relationship with its subsidiaries (see Note 11) and with its Board of Directors (see the Remuneration Report).
Transactions between the Company and its subsidiaries have been eliminated on consolidation and are not disclosed in this note.

Transactions with key management personnel
Key management personnel comprise the Directors. In addition to their salaries, the Group also provides non-cash benefits to Directors and
contributes to post-employment benefit schemes on their behalf. Directors also participate in the Group�s share incentive programmes. The
share based payments are valued at their fair value at the date of grant. Full details of Directors� compensation, including post-employment
benefits is given in the Remuneration Report.
The key management personnel compensations are as follows:

2007 2006
£�000 £�000

Emoluments 471 446
Pension contributions 23 22
Equity compensation benefits � 47

Total 494 515

Details of key managements� interests in the Company�s shares and share options are set out in the Remuneration Report.
During 2007 and 2006, no member of the Board of Directors had a personal interest in any business transactions of the Group.
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Imagination Technologies Group plc Parent Company Balance Sheet

As at 31 March
2007 2006

Notes £000 £000

Fixed assets
Investment in subsidiary undertakings 27 21,415 21,415

21,415 21,415
Current assets
Debtors 28 50,505 44,401
Cash 540 68

51,045 44,469
Current liabilities
Creditors: amounts falling due within one year 29 (182) (192)

Net current assets 50,863 44,277

Net assets 72,278 65,692

Capital and reserves
Called up share capital 32 21,748 20,706
Share premium account 33 50,321 44,472
Other capital reserve 33 593 319
Warrant reserve 33 830 1,104
Retained earnings 33 (1,214) (909)

Equity shareholders� funds 34 72,278 65,692

These financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on 24th May, 2007 and were signed on its behalf by:

G S Shingles
Director

25 Accounting Policies
The following accounting policies have been applied consistently in dealing with items which are considered material in relation to the
financial statements.

Basis of preparation
The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with applicable UK Accounting Standards and under the historical accounting
rules. The following principal accounting policies have been applied consistently throughout the year and preceding year in dealing with
items which are considered material in relation to the Company�s financial statements.
Under section 230(4) of the Companies Act 1985 the Company is exempt from the requirement to present its own profit and loss account.
The Company made a loss for the year of £305,000 (2006: £224,000).
Under Financial Reporting Standard 1 the Company is exempt from the requirement to prepare a cash flow statement on the grounds that it
is included in the consolidated accounts which it has prepared.
The company has taken advantage of the exemption contained in FRS 8 and has therefore not disclosed transactions or balances with its subsidiaries.

Foreign currencies
Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded using the rate of exchange ruling at the date of transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated using the contracted rate or rate of exchange ruling at the balance sheet date and the gains
or losses on translation are included in the profit and loss account.

Investments in subsidiaries
Investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less any provisions for impairment.
Details of the Company�s subsidiary undertakings are included in Note 11 of the Group financial statements.

Share based payment
The company grants share options and awards under a restricted share plan over its own shares to the employees of subsidiary companies. The company
does not receive goods or services in exchange for these share incentives. These are accounted for as a written call option on the entity�s own shares under
FRS 25 and do not result in an accounting entry upon grant. When the share incentives are subsequently exercised the resulting entries are either to increase
share capital and share premium for new shares issued or to record a reduction in the treasury shares owned by the employee benefit trust.

Taxation
The charge for taxation is based on the profit or loss for the year and takes into account taxation deferred because of timing differences
between the treatment of certain items for taxation and accounting purposes.
Deferred tax is recognised in respect of all timing differences between the treatment of certain items for taxation and accounting purposes
which have arisen but not reversed by the balance sheet date, except as otherwise required by FRS 19.



26 Employees
The Company does not employ any staff.
Details of Director�s remunerations are set out in the Remuneration Report. The Non-Executive Directors are remunerated by the Group.

27 Investments in Subsidiary Undertakings

2007 2006
£000 £000

Cost and net book value
At beginning and end of year 21,415 21,415

28 Debtors

2007 2006
£000 £000

Prepayments and accrued income 35 19
Amounts owed by subsidiary undertakings 50,470 44,382

50,505 44,401

29 Creditors: Amounts falling due within one year

2007 2006
£000 £000

Accruals and deferred income 182 192

30 Operating leases
The Company has no operating lease commitments (2006: nil).

31 Capital Commitments
At 31st March 2007, the Company had no capital commitments (2006: £nil).

32 Called Up Share Capital
Details of the Company�s called up share capital are shown in Note 17 of the Group financial statements.

33 Reserves

Share Other Capital Warrant Retained
Premium Reserve Reserve Earnings

£000 £000 £000 £000

As at 1st April 2006 44,472 319 1,104 (909)
Result for financial year � � � (305)
Acquisition consideration � 274 (274) �
Premium on issue of new shares 5,849 � � �

As at 31st March 2007 50,321 593 830 (1,214)

34 Reconciliation of Movements in Equity Shareholders� Funds 

2007 2006
£000 £000

Equity shareholders� funds at the start of the period 65,692 56,059
Loss for the year (305) (224)
Issue of share capital 6,891 9,857

Equity shareholders� funds at the end of the period 72,278 65,692
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Five Year Record

IFRS IFRS IFRS UK GAAP UK GAAP
2007 2006 2005 2004 2003
£�000 £�000 £�000 £�000 £�000

Profit and loss
Revenue 48,062 35,273 30,583 31,215 19,568
Cost of sales (20,913) (16,231) (12,947) (14,066) (7,649)

Gross profit 27,149 19,042 17,636 17,149 11,919

Research and development expenses (23,419) (20,649) (19,381) (16.096) (12,891)
Sales and administration expenses (6,250) (5,549) (4,953) (5,083) (4,652)
Other operating income � � � � 42

Total operating expenses (29,669) (26,198) (24,334) (21,179) (17,501)

Operating loss (2,520) (7,156) (6,698) (4,030) (5,582)

Share of loss of associated undertaking � � � (4) (170)
Total operating loss (2,520) (7,156) (6,698) (4,034) (5,572)

Net financing income 219 286 260 155 177

Loss before taxation (2,301) (6,870) (6,438) (3,879) (5,575)

Income Tax (244) (490) 805 613 248

Loss after taxation (2,545) (7,360) (5,633) (3,266) (5,327)

Earnings per share         Basic and diluted (1.2p) (3.7p) (3.0p) (1.8p) (3.1p)

Balance Sheet
Non-current assets 15,690 14,542 9,309 8,842 9,368

Current assets 25,714 19,083 17,194 13,001 10.946
Current liabilities (8,783) (6,896) (8,111) (5,752) (5,900)

Net current assets 16,931 12,187 9,083 7,249 5,046

Long term borrowings (529) (557) (588) � �

Net assets 32,092 26,172 17,804 16,091 14,414

Called up share capital 21,748 20,706 18,905 18,014 17,039
Capital reserves 60,548 53,843 40,243 33,960 29,952
Retained earnings (50,204) (48,377) (41,344) (35,883) (32,577)

Total equity 32,092 26,172 17,804 16,091 14,414

These tables are for representative purposes only. Full details can be found in the Company�s Annual Reports.

Data and projections shown on pages 1-22 are the product of consolidated partner data, analyst information and Imagination Technologies
research.
Imagination Technologies, the Imagination Technologies logo, PowerVR, METAGENCE, ENSIGMA, PURE Digital, IMGworks, CodeScape,
META, MeOS, MBX, MTX, SGX, UCC, EVOKE-3, PURE One, Move, DMX-25, Chronos and Legato are trademarks or registered trademarks of
Imagination Technologies Limited. All other logos, products, trademarks and registered trademarks are the property of their respective
owners. . 
Copyright © 2007 Imagination Technologies Limited, an Imagination Technologies Group plc company.
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